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About Kantone
(stock code: 1059)

Kantone Holdings Limited (“‘Kantone”) (www.kantone.com)
is a leading provider of IT driven communications systems
with a presence in over 50 markets. It has a proven track
record of high reliability and high integrity products and
systems established by its key subsidiary in Europe with
over 75 years of extensive experience. Kantone is also a
provider of software and technology infrastructure for one-
stop electronic lottery solutions complete with a secure
e-commerce platform for global gaming and entertainment
activities in China.

Throughout the years, Kantone builds on its long-time
global client relationship to expand its business into a wide
range of sectors for the consumer market, which cover
both IT and culture-related technologies and investments.
Currently the Group’s focus is to take advantage of China’s
national policy to foster its culture industry and the rising
interest in collectibles around the world to develop a range
of related internet-based solutions and services.

Kantone is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and is a subsidiary of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited, a global technology group.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BRE

Results
(for the year ended 30 June)
— Turnover
— Adjusted profit*
— Adjusted EBITDA*

- EBITDA
— Attributable profit

— Dividends
— Earnings per share (in HK cents)

Financial Position
(as at 30 June)
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~ Cash and cash equivalents* -RekReEHE
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~ Equity —
Financial Ratios g
(as at 30 June) (RXB=+R)
— Current assets/Current liabilities —-RBEE,/ mBAaR
— Assets/Equity —BE/ 5
— Sales/Assets —EEEAE
— Gearing ratio -~ BB E
* Excluding impairment, fair value change of convertible bond and

other non-cash items
+ Excluding overdrafts

2012
—E—
HK$ 000
FHBT

T
HK$'000
FHET

~ HKS'000
FAT

HK$ 000
FHT

2,720,286 1953394 1,429,281 1,341,006 1,289,616
273,234 235,793 184,353 150,040 165,909
829,722 763,534 614,273 598,043 547,778
561,248 605,878 510,099 532,323 461,978

2,148 77,217 80,474 84,025 82,955
15,133 22,537 30,006 25,593 20,825
0.03 1.03 1.07 1.44 1.57
66,648 84,193 116,233 248,552 126,547
3443636 3435694 3377650 3334519 3067917
3195547 3217105 37149338 37156748 2,872,938
20.83 16.18 9.79 6.52 6.72
1.08 1.07 1.07 1.06 1.06

0.79 0.57 0.42 0.40 0.42

0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02

RFNBME - TARESLFEEZSH RAMIFREIAR
TEREBEX

Note:  The financial information for the two years ended 30 June 2013 and
2012 has been restated to reflect the effect of adoption of amendments
to HKAS 19 titled “Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The results,
assets and liabilities for the two years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010
were extracted from the respective annual reports and not restated to

reflect the effect of adoption of amendments to HKAS 19.

Earnings Profile (1996-2014)

(in HK$ million)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The overall business environment has remained challenging. China is experiencing slower GDP growth, and
the economy of our other major markets continues to be uncertain. In the markets in which we operate,
tight controls continued to be exercised in public and private sector spending, thereby slowing the pace of
growth. Even though economic data of Europe and the US released from time to time have shown signs of
recovery, the numbers have not necessarily translated into any sustainable improvement.

Investment in innovative solutions continues to hold the key to maintaining the Group’s momentum amid
volatile market conditions. We have also placed strong focus on managing risks and finances during a
difficult period.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Despite maintaining sales growth for the year, the Group recorded a significant fall in profit as compared
with the previous year.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group’s financial results are summarised below:

Turnover was HK$2,720 million

Profit for the year was HK$5 million

Impairment charge was HK$268 million

Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment) was HK$830 million
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$2 million
Earnings per share was HKO0.03 cents

The Group maintains a healthy financial position

The decline in profit is primarily attributable to a provision charge of HK$268 million for systems and
networks resulting from a slowdown in business experienced by the Group in recent months. A delay in the
development of certain technology projects also led to a decline in demand from potential customers. (More
fully described under the section headed “Financial Position” below.)

FINAL DIVIDEND

As a precaution against further economic and financial turbulence, and to strengthen our liquidity position
ahead of continuing market uncertainties, the Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2014.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Taking account of the latest economic indicators from various sources, the Group’s key markets are unlikely
to reverse the slowing down-trend in the second half of the calendar year, and hence the demand for the
Group’s products and services are expected to come under continuing pressure. After careful review of the
Group’s business plans for a number of technology projects, the Board deems it appropriate to reconsider
the future cashflows from such projects, and in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, the Board
considers it prudent to make a provision for impairment on the investment costs of these projects.

Notwithstanding slower momentum, the Group maintains a healthy financial position, adheres to a prudent
financial management policy, and does not enter into speculative derivatives or structured product
transactions.
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OUTLOOK

The pace of economic recovery is still uncertain, especially with greater downward pressure on the
economy in China, and its impact on other emerging markets and the world economy as a whole. The
US is expected to enter a period of interest rate rise which will pose further uncertainties to the financial
market. Meanwhile, political and social instabilities in the Middle East and Eastern Europe, plus the Ebola
virus outbreak, can continue to undermine consumer confidence, leading to reduced market demand. At
the same time, the markets for many of the Group’s products and services are characterised by rapidly
changing technologies and evolving industry standards. Changes in market conditions caused by new
technologies, emergence of new competitors, consolidations among our customers and competitors, as
well as changes in regulatory requirements can bring volatilities to our businesses. As a player in the global
market and industry supply chain, the Group is unlikely to be spared from the economic and industry
turmoil. Meeting all these challenges require consistent operational planning and shrewd execution and
investment in innovative and enhanced product mix that is highly aligned with our customers’ priorities.

Looking ahead, we will continue our prudent approach in investing in complementary businesses that have
good growth prospects. In particular, the Group will pursue sectors which are supported by government
policies, including healthcare, innovation and technology, cultural and creative industries, energy
conservation and green technologies, smart living, and information-based services for the community and
consumers. Together with our partners, we aim to deliver value to our customers to achieve better results.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to the shareholders and business partners of
the Company for their continued support, and our fellow directors and staff members for their hard work
and valuable contribution.

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

25 September 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review (the “Year”), the Group’s
turnover increased to HK$2,720 million from HK$1,953
million in the previous year (the “Previous Year”). Profit
for the Year dropped to HK$4.8 million compared
with HK$78.1 million for the Previous Year, and profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$2.1 million
as compared with HK$77.2 million for the Previous Year.
Eamings per share for the Year was HK0.03 cents (2013:
HK1.03 cents). The comparative figures for the Previous
Year had been restated to reflect the effect of the adoption
of amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 19
titled “Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)”.

The increase in turnover was mainly contributed by the
increase in sales of cultural products to HK$1,132 million,
compared with HK$475 million of the Previous Year.
Turnover of systems sales and licensing increased slightly
to HK$1,561 million, compared with HK$1,453 million of
the Previous Year. EBITDA was HK$561 million compared
with HK$606 million for the Previous Year.

Taking account of the latest economic indicators from
various sources, the Group’s key markets are unlikely to
reverse the slowing down-trend in the second half of the
calendar year, and hence the demand for the Group’s
products and services are expected to come under
continuing pressure. After careful review of the Group’s
business plans for a number of technology projects,
the Board deems it appropriate to reconsider the future
cashflows from such projects. In line with prudent financial
management, the Group had recognised impairment
losses of HK$126 million (2013: HK$158 million) for
deposits and prepaid development costs for systems
and networks as well as HK$142 million (2013: nil) for
development costs for systems and networks. Excluding
the impairment losses, adjusted EBITDA for the Year
was HK$830 million, compared with HK$764 million for
the Previous Year. The Group will keep the economic
situation and the business of the Group under continuing
review, in particular the In-Car Telematics Solution project.
In view of the slowdown in business growth in general
for the auto industry and a longer than expected time for
market participants, especially the governments of various
jurisdictions, to embrace such telematics, plus the fact
that the license agreements with agents to promote such
products will expire on 30 November 2014, management
is continuing its effort with relevant governments for
such adoption and to renew these license agreements
with agents. Management is cautiously optimistic of the
adoption of these telematics by relevant governments
and the outcome of the renewal of license agreements. In
the event that the adoption is not progressing well or the
license agreements are not renewed, further impairment
loss may arise.

The Group continues to exercise cost control. Distribution
costs increased to HK$37.9 million (2013: HK$33.2
million) in line with the increase in turnover, while general
and administrative expenses went up to HK$147.5
million (2013: HK$123.8 million) mainly due to increase
in expenses for the sales of cultural products. Staff
costs were HK$92.7 million (2013: HK$88.4 million)
and research and development costs expensed were
HK$10.3 million (2013: HK$10.9 million). Amortisation
and depreciation expenses rose to HK$556 million (2013:
HK$526 million) as a result of the continued rolling out of
projects in prior years. Finance costs for the Year were
HK$0.6 million (2013: HK$1.8 million).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In China, the economy remained stable despite lower
economic growth and declining export performance. The
Group’s marketing and sales activities for customised
solutions and products continued. Its product portfolio
embraces a wide range of integrated wireless solutions
and web-based monitoring systems mainly designed for
remote management and security applications, as well
as customised solutions for the trading and promotion of
art, antiques, and cultural products. The rise in turnover
was mainly attributable to revenue growth from cultural
business and general increase in sales of all other
segments.

In Europe, although the economic landscape has
improved since the Eurozone debt crisis was at its height
in 2011 and 2012, growth remained patchy and sluggish.
Britain’s recovery continued, although there was concern
over the rising level of government debt. Germany
recorded solid growth with reduced unemployment, whilst
the French economy, the second largest in the Euro area,
stagnated, and that of ltaly, the third largest, contracted.

Performance in the UK was ahead of budget, with the
public sector accounting for much of the growth. The
improvement highlighted the success of the Group’s new
unified communications product in delivering significant
savings for its institutional clients. Elsewhere in Europe,
sales in Germany which were dominated by customised
personal security products with higher gross margins
were however weaker than expected as the Group was
affected by staff shortage due to the country’s high rate of
employment.
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For e-gaming and online entertainment, the Group
continued to provide integrated gaming technology
solutions, online payment channels and sales networks.
Investments in the e-lottery project were subject to
periodic review to determine if progress was in line with
original plans, and if the anticipated benefits could be
achieved.

Product development, primarily software, remains a focus
for the Group, and as such, investment in this area will
continue.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group maintained a healthy financial position with low
gearing throughout the Year. It financed its operation and
business development with internally generated resources,
capital markets instruments and banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had HK$67 million (2013:
HK$84 million) liquid assets made up of deposits, bank
balances and cash. Current assets were approximately
HK$2,298 million (2013: HK$1,393 million) and current
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$110 million (2013:
HK$86 million). With net current assets of HK$2,188
million (2013: HK$1,307 million), the Group maintained
a comfortable level of liquidity. The gearing ratio of
the Group, defined as the Group’s total borrowings
of HK$31.6 million (2013: HK$24.7 million) to equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$3,196
million (2013: HK$3,217 million), was 0.010 (2013: 0.008).

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s total borrowings mainly
comprised bank loans of HK$31.6 million (2013: HK$24.7
million), with HK$17.3 million (2013: HK$7.7 million)
repayable within one year, HK$4.8 million (2013: HK$4.3
million) repayable in the second year and HK$9.5 million
(2013: HK$12.7 million) repayable in the third to fifth year.
As at 30 June 2014, bank loans of HK$19.1 million (2013:
HK$21.7 million) were secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying value of HK$8.8 million (2013:
HK$7.9 million). Finance costs for the Year decreased to
HK$0.6 million (2013: HK$1.8 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a healthy financial position with low gearing.
It finances its operation and business development by
a combination of internally generated resources, capital
markets instruments and banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the
Company bearing interest at floating rates and were
denominated in their local currencies. As such, the
currency risk exposure associated with the Group’s
borrowings was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for were approximately
HK$22 million (2013: HK$52 million). These commitments
were set aside for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, and development of systems and networks.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2014, the Group employed about 650 staff
around the globe. Staff costs for the Year were HK$93
million (2013: HK$88 million). Remuneration is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee.
Remuneration includes monthly salaries, performance-
linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and other
benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee. In recommending the
remuneration of the directors, the committee will consider
factors such as the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

As At 25 September 2014

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok, CBE, GCM, Comm
OSSI, Chevalier de la Légion d’Honneur, SBS, JP, 67, is
the founder and Chairman. He is also the Chairman and an
executive director of both Champion Technology Holdings
Limited (“Champion Technology”), the Company’s
holding company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”), and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), previously
a subsidiary of Champion Technology listed on the
GEM Board of the Exchange. He has over 40 years of
experience in the computing and telecommunications
industries. Prior to setting up the Champion Technology
group in 1987, he was the general manager in charge
of Asiadata Limited, a computing services subsidiary of
Cable & Wireless PLC.

Professor Kan has received a number of prestigious
awards from several governments and various local
and international professional bodies in recognition of
his contribution to the community and the industry.
Government awards include Commander of the most
Excellent Order of the British Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty
Queen Elizabeth 1l (2006); Commendatore dell’Ordine
della Stella della Solidarieta Italiana by the Italian Prime
Minister Hon. Romano Prodi (2006); the Hong Kong SAR
Government’s appointment as a Justice of the Peace
(2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur by
the Government of France (2007); Silver Bauhinia Star
by the Hong Kong SAR Government (2009); and FUECH
Grand Cross of Merit for Outstanding Consular Work by
the Federation of European Associations of Honorary
Consuls (FUECH) (2013). In July 2013, he was appointed
Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of
Hungary.

Professional awards include Governor’s Award for Hong
Kong Industries (1989); Young Industrialist Award (1992);
and Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy (1993).
He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also
received academic awards which include Honorary Fellow
of the Academy of Chinese Studies (2005); and Honorary
Professor of Szent Istvan University in Budapest, Hungary
(2011).

In civic duties, Professor Kan is currently the Honorary
President and former Chairman (2001-2011) of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council, and
Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance (1999-present). He
is a member of the Council of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and the Election Committee for the Hong
Kong representatives of National People’s Congress
of China for three terms from 2002 to 2017. He was a
member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election Committee
for the IT sector for three consecutive terms from 1996 to
2012. He also served twice on the Exchange’s Corporate
Governance Working Group during 1994-1995 and
1999-2000, and was a member of the Listing Committee
of the Exchange for the period 1999-2003. He was
the Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Information and Communications Technology
Services Advisory Committee from 2006 to 2010 and ICT
Working Group, Hong Kong — United Kingdom Business
Partnership from 2004 to 2007. He had also served as a
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industry Advisory
Committee for 10 years from 1997 to 2006.

Professor Kan had been an independent non-executive
director of CLP Holdings Limited for about 9 years from
2001 until he retired in 2010 to take up the additional
responsibility as Honorary Consul of Hungary in Hong
Kong and Macao from 2011 to 2013.

LAl Yat Kwong, 65, is the Acting Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also
the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director
of Champion Technology, as well as a non-executive
director of Digital HK. He joined the Champion Technology
group in March 1994 as Vice President of Internal Audit
and Control. In July 1997, he took on responsibility as
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and has over
42 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
company secretarial matters. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising). Since January 2013, he has been an
independent non-executive director of Chinalco Mining
Corporation International, shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Trony Solar Holdings Company
Limited from October 2011 to February 2013.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 58, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since June 2001. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive director of Champion
Technology, as well as a non-executive director of
Digital HK. He and Professor Paul Kan, Chairman of the
Company, are brothers. He is responsible for formulating
the Champion Technology group’s overall policy and
development strategy as well as its global operations and
management. Prior to joining the Champion Technology
group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions
in several international companies in Hong Kong. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a Master’s degree
in Economics from the University of Alberta in Canada.
In 2006, Mr. Kan completed the Oxford Advanced
Management Programme at the Said Business School of
the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong IT Alliance as well as the Chairman of its IT
Committee. He is a member of the CreateSmart Initiative
Vetting Committee of the Hong Kong SAR Government,
the Design Council of Hong Kong and the Consultative
and Advisory Panel of the Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited. Mr. Kan is also an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and a General Committee
Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Shirley HA Suk Ling, 58, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004. She
is the Chief Executive Officer and an executive director
of Digital HK, as well as a non-executive director of
Champion Technology. She joined Champion Technology
in 1992 as its Executive Vice President with responsibility
for its corporate development. She has over 25 years
of business experience including 10 years in investment
banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. She is currently a member of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Advisory Committee of the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data; Digital 21 Strategy
Advisory Committee; the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance); the Project Assessment Panel of the Small
Entrepreneur Research Assistance Programme (SERAP);
and the Advisory Group on Eliminating Discrimination
Against Sexual Minorities. She is a General Committee
Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Industry Council, Executive Committee Extended Member
of the Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council
and member of the Hong Kong Corporate Counsel
Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Frank BLEACKLEY, 77, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since November
2001. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Champion Technology. He was formerly the Managing
Director of Chubb China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary
of the former Chubb Security Group, a manufacturer and
distributor of security and safety products and systems
headquartered in the United Kingdom (“UK”). He has
considerable experience in the management and business
development of joint venture companies in East Asia.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

As At 25 September 2014

Professor Julia TSUEI Jo, 87, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since October
2003. She has over 40 years of experience in medicine
and biomedical research, in particular, Traditional Chinese
Medicine. She had taught in the various medical schools
in USA, Taiwan and China and is well-acclaimed in the
Chinese community of Biological as well as Bioenergetic
International Medicine Research. Her research
achievements in bridging east-west medicine also
earned her much recognition in the international arena,
as demonstrated by the numerous awards she received
in the past. These include the Lifetime Achievement
Award granted by the International Institute for Advanced
Studies in Systems Research and Cybernetics, Baden-
Baden, Germany in 2001; the Founding Patron and
Lifetime Member conferred by the American Association
of Acupuncture and Bio-energetic Medicine in 1991;
the Lifetime Achievement Award granted by the 4th
International Forum on Biological and Bioenergetic
Medicine in July 2014; Chairman of Acupuncture
Research Foundation of the Acupuncture and Moxibustion
Society of China during 1995-2005; as well as founder of
the International Medical Science Research Foundation in
the USA and Taiwan in 1988.

Professor Tsuei is presently President of Foundation
for East-West Medicine, USA; President of American
Association of the Acupuncture and Bio-energetic
Medicine USA; Professor Emeritus of School of Public
Health, University of Hawaii, USA; Director of Clinic
for East-West Medicine, Taiwan; Founding Director
of Graduate Institute of Traditional Chinese Medicine,
National Yang-Ming University, Taiwan; and Founding
Board member of Chinese Bio-Electromagnetic Science
Association.

Miranda HO Mo Han, 44, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January
2008, and is the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. She is a director of Billy Ho and Associates
CPA Limited and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors; and an Associate Member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Oklahoma City University, USA. Ms. Ho has participated
in community services as a member of the Hong Kong
Federation of Zhong Shan Unions & Association Limited
for years.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 58, has been the Company
Secretary since January 2005. She is a solicitor practising
in Hong Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of
Champion Technology.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FUNG Kin Leung, 53, is the Group’s Head of
Innovation with responsibilities for managing the Group’s
research and development capacity to facilitate its
global operations. He is also a director of several of the
Group’s subsidiaries and a Senior Vice President of
Microelectronics of Champion Technology. Mr. Fung
has over 25 years’ experience in software and product
development. He joined the Champion Technology
group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was promoted
through the ranks to his current position. In recent years,
he has been focusing on the development of information
delivery systems to enhance wireless internet applications.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science and Electronics
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master’s
degree in Electronics Engineering from the University
of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer as well as a
member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Stephen GENTRY, 58, is the Group’s Head of
International Businesses and Chief Executive of Multitone
Electronics Plc (“Multitone”), a member company of
the Group, with responsibilities for formulating the
overall policy and development strategy for the Group’s
international operations. He is also a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group’s various
European and American operations. He was promoted to
the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in 2003 and is
a member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 51, is Managing Director of the
Group’s German operations. He joined the Group in 2008
and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management in the electronics industry. His earlier career
covered international sales of industrial machinery and
process technology before entering the semiconductor
sector in 1989. He was responsible for the sales
organisation of a leading European distributor of electronic
components before joining the Group.
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Ron WRAY, 53, is Technical Director with responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s technical operations as well
as developing the strategy for the Group’s investment
in research and development. He has over 25 years of
experience in the radio and the electronics industry and
the Royal Navy. He is an associate member of the Institute
of Sales and Marketing Managers and a member of the
Institute of Directors.

Philip LAWRENCE, 56, is Finance Director for the
Group’s European operations. He is a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and
has worked in finance for over 30 years. He has worked
in various companies ranging from large international
company in the world to SMEs (small medium enterprises)
covering engineering, fast moving consumer goods,
power, transport, care, warehousing and distribution.

Clive McGOVERN, 52, is UK and International Sales
Director for the Group having previously worked at a
senior level for technology businesses both in Europe and
America. He is a member of the Institute of Directors and
the Chartered Institute of Marketing. He holds a Master’s
degree and a Bachelor’s degree in Science. His business
experience encompasses sales, marketing, support
engineering, European patent law as well as accounting
and finance.

Helen BROWN, 60, joined the Group in 1991 and is
Head of Human Resources for the Group’s international
operations. She is qualified with the Institute of Personnel
Development and has extensive experience covering
employment legislation, industrial relations, change
management, recruitment and human resources policy.

Andrew JONES, 51, joined the Group in 2010 and
is Director of Marketing for the Group’s European
operations. He has an MBA and is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Marketing. He has previously worked
for a number of leading communication companies
including Cable & Wireless and brings to the Group his
significant experience in developing sales and marketing
strategies within the UK and international markets.
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Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 53, is Managing Director
of the Group’s Brazilian operations with responsibility
for running and developing business in South America.
He is also Vice President of Interactive Knowledge
Delivery for Champion Technology group’s international
operations, overseeing international clients’ requirements
for enterprise solutions. He joined the Group in 1997 and
set up from its inception the business in Brazil. He holds a
Master’s degree in Aerospace Engineering from Sup’Aero
in France and an MBA from the London Business School.

Roy GOSS, 71, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison.
He is based in Macau and is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert
in finance and telecommunications, having served in
the Middle East and Macau with Cable & Wireless PLC
for more than 17 years. He is a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Prior to joining the Champion Technology group, he
was the Finance Director of Macau Telecommunications
Company, a subsidiary of Cable & Wireless PLC.

WAN Yan Chang, 62, is Head of Administration and
Accounting in China responsible for overseeing the day-
to-day administrative procedures for the Group’s quality
control, assurance of logistics operations, as well as
licensee and customer relationship in China. Ms. Wan
joined the Group in 1993. She has extensive experience in
China trade.



KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in sales of systems and licensing (including
sales of systems products, software licensing and customisation,
provision of services and leasing of systems products, provision
of e-lottery services and development and provision of IT
solutions for e-gaming, leisure and entertainment), sales of
cultural products, and holding strategic investments in advanced
technology product development companies and e-commerce
projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 27 and in the accompanying
notes to the consolidated financial statements. An interim dividend
in scrip form equivalent to HK0.20 cents per share, with a cash
option, was distributed to shareholders during the year. The
directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
The Company'’s reserves available for distribution represents the
aggregate of dividend reserve, special reserve and retained profits
of HK$218,350,000 (2013: HK$247,726,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive directors:
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo

Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS - continued
In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Lai Yat Kwong, Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung and
Mr. Frank Bleackley will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract with
the Company for a term of up to the date on which he/she shall
retire by rotation in an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
The executive directors do not have any service contract with the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company, its ultimate holding company, Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”), and a fellow
subsidiary during the year ended 30 June 2014 which Champion
has subsequently disposed of its entire controlling interest,
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), has a share option
scheme under which eligible persons, including directors of
the Company, Champion, Digital HK or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for shares of
the Company, Champion and Digital HK respectively.

(i) The Company
On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted the share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). No option has been granted
by the Company under the Scheme. Particulars of the
Scheme are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

(ii)

Champion

On 30 November 2012, Champion adopted a share option
scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the Champion Option Scheme was to attract and to
retain quality personnel and other persons and to provide
them with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of Champion and its subsidiaries (the “Champion
Group”). Under the Champion Option Scheme, the
directors of Champion might grant options to any directors,
employees, consultants, advisors in respect of business
and operation of Champion, its subsidiaries or affiliates or
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects included
the aforesaid persons or a company beneficially owned by
the aforesaid persons as well as customers and suppliers of
the Champion Group, to subscribe for shares of Champion.
The option granted by Champion was exercisable at any
time for a period determined by its directors which should
not be more than ten years from the date of grant. The
exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Champion Option Scheme
was the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i)
the closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; and (i) the average closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. No
option has been granted by Champion under the Champion
Option Scheme since their adoption.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO

ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

(iii) Digital HK
On 30 November 2012, Digital HK adopted a share option
scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
DHK Option Scheme was to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with
incentive to contribute to the business and operation of
Digital HK and its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”).
Under the DHK Option Scheme, the directors of Digital
HK might grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business and operation
of Digital HK, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects included the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the aforesaid
persons as well as customers and suppliers of the Digital
HK Group, to subscribe for shares of Digital HK. An option
granted by Digital HK was exercisable at any time for a
period determined by its directors which will be less than
ten years from the date of grant. The exercise price per
share (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the DHK Option Scheme is the highest of (j)
the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; and
(iiiy the average closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. No option has
been granted by Digital HK under the DHK Option Scheme
since their adoption.

Other than the share option schemes described above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2014, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

ESCESERERAR

RZB-—MFERA=ZTHE  RESFRAEGEDI(TE
H M BRG] FEI2FREARRAATFEZ B
MR » R ETEITAEEETESFZHM
ZEFADAARARRRZHBITIEL ZBA - AR
REFERD RS E AR EE(EE RESF LY
EIEPIEXVED) 2 B iR R 2 e T

Approximate

percentage

Number  of the issued

Name of director Capacity of shares  share capital

HEBRTRE

EEpg E227) RHEEE ZHA =

Securities of the Company Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 1 54.91%
/NS [GREZ6 NEER BT

Securities of Champion Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 27.90%
BEES D€ =6 NEHER FaE2

Securities of Digital HK Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 3 74.48%
EEEES [GREZ6 NEER FiEE3

Notes: B 5E

1. 4,167,071,367 shares of the Company were held by Champion.
Lawnside International Limited (“Lawnside”) is beneficially wholly
owned by Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok. As at 30 June 2014, Lawnside
had interest in approximately 27.90% of the entire issued share
capital of Champion. Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have
corporate interest in the shares of the Company held by Champion.

2. 1,766,860,957 shares of Champion were held by Lawnside. Prof.
Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in the
shares of Champion held by Lawnside.

3. 106,050,000 shares of Digital HK were held by Champion and
5,670,520 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside. Prof. Paul
Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interests in the shares
of Digital HK held by Champion and Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as
at 30 June 2014 as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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EBREBEBERAF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

BREENEARBERS 2 ER

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with ARG ER @ AEEEBE REMB AR (AEER
Champion and its subsidiaries (other than the Group): SN BT TS -
Nature of transactions RHME HK$’000
THET
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for the provision of office REERBERKXAERZNERBAE 900
premises and facilities, and management services, on cost basis BEAREERE CER
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for treasury services REERBESNTBREZER 738

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above transactions relating to Champion’s provision of
office premises and facilities, and management services to the
Group pursuant to an agreement dated 5 January 2010 (the
“Management Agreement”) were carried out in the usual course of
business and on normal commercial terms and are in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Details of such connected transactions are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Management Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules exempt from the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
the provision of services to the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2014, the following persons (other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Capacity

51

FERR

RoT-MEAASHE  RESERBEEDE
seeHRE AR AATEE 2 BRMAEE - THIA
EOR R FE B IATRARMR N KA R T 2 o
Bl -

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
HEBTRE
ZHR =

Number
of shares

BO#E

Champion (Note 1) Beneficial owner 4,167,071,367 54.91%
BE (M) EafAA
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited (Note 2) Corporate interest 554,740,000 7.31%
FEEE(EE)BRRE(FE2) NEHER

Notes: M3 -

1. See note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in 1. 20 LN EE 2 BHER KR |8 -

Securities” section above.

2. Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited
had interest in 554,740,000 shares of the Company through
control over 100% interest in the shares of Shanghai Industrial
Financial (Holdings) Company Limited, which had direct interest in
554,740,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
according to the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2014.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2014 and there had
been no exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its
distributors, and purchases materials and components from
suppliers who act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate
customers and suppliers through these distributors and
merchandisers respectively represented less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share
capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee of the Company after considering factors such as the
Company’s operating results, individual performance, salaries
paid by comparable companies, and time commitment and
responsibilities of the relevant director.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
25 September 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in the year
ended 30 June 2014.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30
June 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the
Group’s activities with a view to developing its business and
enhancing shareholder value.

The composition of the Board during the year was as follows:

Executive directors
Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok* (Chairman)
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung*
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY

Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo

Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han

* Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung are brothers.

The Board held 7 meetings during the year ended 30 June 2014.
All directors attended these meetings.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company held 1
general meeting. All directors attended the meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 June 2014 and up to
the date of this report, Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok, Mr. LAl Yat
Kwong, Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung, Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling, Mr.
Frank BLEACKLEY, Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo and Ms. Miranda HO
Mo Han engaged in business activities in their respective fields
as continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Ms. Miranda HO
Mo Han and Mr. LAl Yat Kwong have participated in continuous
professional development programs required by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The directors also
participated in other trainings and professional developments
such as attending or holding seminars, giving speeches or
studying reading materials relating to the Group or its industries
and businesses; rules and regulations; business management; or
the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are separate and performed by different individuals with a clear
division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board,
he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for
a term of up to the date on which the directors shall retire by
rotation at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Code and the Articles of Association of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung and Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive directors).
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Ms. Miranda HO Mo
Han.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the executive
directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines
set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE - continued

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed included
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of remuneration.
All members attended these meetings.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements. For the year ended 30 June
2014, the remuneration payable to 6 members of the senior
management of the Company is within the range of HK$0 to
HK$1,000,000; whereas the remuneration payable to 5 members
of the senior management of the Company is within the range of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,500,000.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business.
When deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy
of the Company to consider a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, and other qualifications, skills and
experience which the Company considers will make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and reviews it from
time to time and shall bring to the attention of the Board any
significant issues or recommendations as and when necessary
and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and amendments to the
Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (independent non-executive directors); Ms. Shirley HA
Suk Ling (non-executive director); and Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok
(executive director). This Committee is chaired by Ms. Miranda
HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
after his/her appointment. All directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, one third of the directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at each annual general meeting of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE - continued

Potential new directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the year
ended 30 June 2014.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2014 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. All members attended these meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 4 members, comprising Ms. Miranda
HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia TSUEI
Jo (independent non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung (non-executive director). The Chairperson of this
Committee is Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set
out in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among
other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information and its
financial reporting, corporate governance and internal control
matters, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit Committee
reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its terms of
reference.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual results, its internal control system, and
corporate governance matters including reviewing the Corporate
Governance Report for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.
All members attended these meetings.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the fee for the Company’s
external auditors for audit services was about HK$2,658,000
(2013: HK$2,483,000) and that for non-audit services mainly
relating to taxation matters was about HK$177,000 (2013:
HK$167,000).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2014, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going-concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT - continued

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 30
June 2014.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets in compliance with the provisions of the Code.
The purpose is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Ms. Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong, as its company secretary. Its
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. LAl Yat
Kwong, the Acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders through various channels including announcements
and annual and interim reports published on its website at
http://www.kantone.com and the Company’s general meetings.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings and
they may put to the Board any enquiries about the Group through
its website at http://www.kantone.com or in writing sent to the
principal office of the Company at 5th Floor, Kantone Centre, 1
Ning Foo Street, Chaiwan, Hong Kong. The directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chairman,
the Acting Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees
(or their respective delegates) and external auditor attend the
annual general meeting and are available to answer questions
raised by shareholders. Shareholders may also access the
Company’s corporate website for the Group’s information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
two or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business (including any proposals) specified in such
requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS IR

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kantone
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 27 to 91, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY - continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEaREtEZEKER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #Z - — & XA=+HILFE

2014
—Z-MmE
HK$'000
FTiEx FTAT
(RESEIE)]
(B&E3I)
Turnover EEE 6 2,720,286 1,953,394
Cost of sales SHEMA (2,259,357) (1,555,802
Gross profit EF4a5E 460,929 397,592
Other income Hilig A 7 8,721 7,930
Distribution costs Pox D (37,927) (33,173)
General and administrative expenses —MRITHE (147,525) (123,836)
Impairment losses recognised for development gt 47 I 4848 5 2 Ak AR FTRER
costs for systems and networks ZRMEEE 14 (142,000) -
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and g4 KI8T B3 AT HER
prepaid development costs ZREEE 16 (126,474) (157,656)
Research and development costs expensed — #ff5¢ M F A AN 57 (10,349) (10,883)
Finance costs BUBCIIEN 8 (615) (1,837)
Profit before taxation B AR A 9 4,760 78,137
Taxation WA 10 - _
Profit for the year REZHFI 4,760 78,137
Other comprehensive (expense) income: EM2m(TH )z -
Item that will not be reclassified to BreEHERE
profit or loss: 2R :
Remeasurement of defined benefits EHTREEARK
pension plans BE 1,079 16,413
1,079 16,413
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEMEHEER
to profit or loss: 2R
Exchange difference arising on translation of ~ EBANERBEFEE 2
foreign operations [EHZSR (9,585) 2,809
(9,585) 2,809
Other comprehensive (expense) income for — AEEZEHMW2E (X H)
the year zs (8,506) 19,222
Total comprehensive (expense) income for ~ AFEERE(H 1)
the year et (3,746) 97,359
Profit for the year attributable to: AL ARFERTF
Owners of the Company RATHERA 2,148 77217
Non-controlling interests TR AR SR R 2,612 920
4,760 78,137
Total comprehensive (expense) income for JERAFEERE(E )W
the year attributable to: fa
Owners of the Company AATHERA (6,181) 95,981
Non-controlling interests JEFRIRAL R AE RS 2,435 1,378
(3,746) 97,359
Earnings per share — Basic BRAET-EA 12 HKO0.03 cents J&1lll  HK1.03 cents {1l
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mEPBIRRE

At 30 June 2014 A—Z—m&E XA =+H

30.6.2014
—2-mEF
AH=tH

Notes HK$’000
HtzE F#&T

30.6.2013
—E—=
AA=tH
HK$'000
FHET
(RESEWES))

(BE5)

1.7.2012
—EB-CfF
tH—H
HK$’000
FHET
(RESEICE))
(BE71)

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NEE 13 46,284 44,773 46,773
Development costs for systems and networks — Z 4 & 4348 FR 28 Ak AR 14 1,062,346 1,547,368 1,175,896
Goodwill EES 15 36,795 36,795 36,795
Deposits and prepaid development costs Ze RIEMNFERA 16 = 413,904 1,172,316
1,145,425 2,042,840 2,431,780
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 17 207,535 24,523 20,608
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K EABRIX 18 2,024,028 1,284,137 809,020
Taxation recoverable BEqEEA - 1 9
Deposits, bank balances and cash Fxo RTERNES 19 66,648 84,193 116,233
2,298,211 1,392,854 945,870
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables FENE 5 REMBRR 20 91,741 77,102 66,473
Warranty provision RERE 21 1,294 1,246 1,229
Bank borrowings — amount due within RITEE-R—FR
one year FIIHR 22 17,283 7,719 28,870
110,318 86,067 96,572
Net current assets mEEETE 2,187,893 1,306,787 849,298
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERTHEE 3,333,318 3,349,627 3,281,078
Non-current liabilities Eyiii=V
Bank borrowings — amount due after RITEE-R—F
one year Eallp:id 22 14,348 16,989 -
Retirement benefit obligations RKABFIHSE 23 99,227 93,772 110,686
113,575 110,761 110,686
Net assets BEFE 3,219,743 3,238,866 3,170,392
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30.6.2014 30.6.2013 1.7.2012
—E-mF -2—= —E-—F
ABA=1H AA=1H +HA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET BT
(RESEWES)) (RESEICE))
(B&E5) (B&E%)

Capital and reserves BRAER &
Share capital AR A 25 758,875 751,603 750,458
Reserves 545 2,436,672 2,465,502 2,398,880
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR A1 B AFELEZ 3,195,547 3,217,105 3,149,338
Non-controlling interests JEIRRR AR B A 24,196 21,761 21,054

3,219,743 3,238,866 3,170,392

The consolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 91 were  F27BEFN BFE AV BEREER =T —Y
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  FNAZ+HAABAEESIAZ RERETIE - WH T

25 September 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERRESR:
PAUL KAN MAN LOK  f& 3z 4 LAI YAT KWONG 2R3}
DIRECTOR =% DIRECTOR =%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERAERBER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #Z=—Z—W&EA=1+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATREAEL
Non-
Share Share  Dividend Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests
FER
BE  ROEE RERE EXRE REE CL Y
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK§'000  HK$'000
TiEn e BT AT TEr  TEn BT
At1July 2012 RZE——%+tf-H
(s originally stated) (BEZ5) 750458 799577 15,009 5189 1,639,402 3209635 21,064 3,230,689
Effect on application of HKAS 19 BRI EE 10 72
(as revised in 2011) (Z3——&8E)
(note 2 (552) - - - 1300 61637 (80.297) - (60297)
At1July 2012 W=E--%+A-H
(as restated) (GELT) 750458 799577 15,009 6,529 1,577,765 3,149,338 21,064 3,170,392
Proft for the year KEER - - - - T T w0 T8
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension - B & 28igF Rl 2]
plans (note 2) (iE) - - - - 16413 16413 - 16413
Exchange difference arising on RESNSBIREREE .
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - 2,351 - 2,351 458 2,809
Total comprehensive income for the year 2% 2B E - - - 2% 93630 95981 13718 97,359
Capital injection to a subsidiary m-HHBARLIE - - - - 671 671 (671) -
Dividends for the year REERE
- nterm —if - - 150 - (15021) - - -
~ final -K& - - 7,516 - (7,516) - - -
Dividends paid RED - - (28,889 - - (28,889 - (28889
Issue of shares as scrip dividend BB EME TR 1,145 - (1149 - - - - -
1,145 - (14%) - 1866 (28214 (671 (28885
At 30 June 2013 RZT-=FxA=1H
(as restated) (BE7) 751,603 799,577 7516 8,880 1,649,529 3217,1056 21,761 3,238,866
Profit for the year KEREN - - - - 218 2148 2612 4760
Remeasurement of defined benefits pension EZ7EEFE (K
plans HE - - - - 1,079 1,079 - 1,079
Exchange difference arising on RESNSBIEHRES .
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - (9408 - (9,408 (177) (9,585
Total comprehensive (expense) REERA ()R
income for the year a% - - - [0doy 327 (B181) 2436 (3,740)
Dividends for the year TEERS
- interim ~H - - 15133 - (15133 - - -
Dividends paid BARE - - (15377) - - (1837 - (1837)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend RARR S ME TR 7,212 - 1212 - - - - -
7012 - 151 - {513)  (15377) - {5877)
At 30 June 2014 H=2-mEAA=1H T5R8T5 199577 - () 1A 3IEAT 2419 3219743
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 &= —Z—W&EA=1+HILFE

2014 VAUK]
e i T
HK$°000 HK$'000

FHR T
(Restated)
(B&31)

Cash flows from operating activities REEK RSN
Profit before taxation MR RTE T 4,760 78,137
Adjustments for: A
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BEMRREZER 771 48
Interest income AMEMA (5,000) (5,021)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEE 2 FE 615 1,837
Amortisation of development costs for systems R BERER AL
and networks iy 543,405 514,495
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BELEEGZITE 12,468 11,409
Impairment losses recognised for development TR G R AR F BB A TR
costs for systems and networks 2R ERE 142,000 -
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and iR e RIENFRERRAMER
prepaid development costs ZREEE 126,474 157,656
Operating cash flows before movements in BEELEHRI KL
working capital REMR 825,493 758,561
Increase in inventories TEZEM (183,012) (4,417)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EABRFR 2 3G (739,891) (476,078)
Increase in trade and other payables FENB S REMBERZ I 8,630 13,769
Decrease in warranty provision REBEZRD (31) (20)
Net cash (used in) generated from operations BE(R)EECREFHE (88,811) 291,821
Taxation in other jurisdiction refunded Hith A& v FiIER I 1 8
Net cash (used in) from operating activities BEXEH () S < R 9 (88,810) 291,829
Cash flows from investing activities RERH AL
Deposits and prepayment refunded (paid) in respect BRI RS RBERER LR
of development costs for systems and networks BR(BEM RS KFEMNFE 86,970 (284,856)
Interest received BUH & 5,000 5,021
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE  BEREE (9,797) (10,306)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE RZEF2
equipment FIE = 12
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEFSME () 2B F8 82,173 (290,129)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEZHIRER
New bank loans raised ILIRITE R 12,500 24,708
Dividends paid BARE (15,377) (28,889)
Repayment of bank loans BBRITER (8,314) (28,870)
Interest paid BAFIE (615) (1,837)
Net cash used in financing activities mEESEC E SRR (11,806) (34,884)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekReEHIADFE (18,443) (33,184)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHReRRSEE 84,193 116,233
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXgE e 898 1,144
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRESNREEH 66,648 84,193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEPBRERNE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 H#Z = —MNFESA=1+HIFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

GENERAL

Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding
company is Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(“Champion”), a company which was originally incorporated
in the Cayman Islands but subsequently re-domiciled to
Bermuda, and its shares are also listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar because the Company is a public
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange. The functional currency of the Company is
United States dollar.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied a
number of new and revised standards and amendments
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 July 2013.

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised standards and amendments to HKFRSs has had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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EBREEBERAF

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) - continued

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the Group has applied Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 19 “Employee benefits” (as
revised in 2011) and the related consequential amendments
for the first time.

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The
amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when
they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’
permitted under the previous version of HKAS 19 and
accelerate the recognition of past service costs. All actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset
or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit
or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected
return on plan assets used in the previous version of HKAS
19 are replaced with a ‘net interest’ amount under HKAS
19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-
time application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The
application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) has had an
impact on the amounts recognised in profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in prior year. In addition,
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces certain changes in
the presentation of the defined benefit cost including more
extensive disclosures, which are set out in note 23. The
Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions and
restated the comparative amounts on a retrospective basis
(see the tables below for details).
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 H#EZ—Z—NWFEA=1+HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) - continued

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies

The effects of changes in accounting policies described
above on the results for the current year and prior year by
line items are as follows:

Impact on total comprehensive income for the year of the
application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

Xz ETBRREB T ERE
EXFT T B BORR B AT E LB FE
BRI Z R HERIIWT -

JERE BB TERIE 195 (= F——FAFEET)
HAFRE 2 E AR 2

2014 2013
—Z-—MmEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FAT
Impact on profit for the year HREERMNzHE
Increase in general and administrative expenses — —#& & 17H sz &N (3,417) (4,751)
Decrease in profit for the year EEEHEFE D (3,417) (4,751)
Impact on other comprehensive income HEAFEHMBR2ENRE
for the year pd-7
Increase in remeasurement of defined benefits & & e EFIE K2
pension plans #m 1,079 16,413
(Decreass) increase in exchange difference BINEBIREFEE Y
arising on translation of foreign operation [E R 25018 m (133) 996
Increase in other comprehensive income REFEM2EE
for the year M 946 17,409
Decrease in profit for the year attributable to  FE{5 2 £ B %5 F5R 4>
Owners of the Company ARBHEAA (3,417) (4,751)
(3,417) (4,751)
(Decrease) increase in total comprehensive {5 ARFEE 2 E K EEE
income for the year attributable to (R2) &
Owners of the Company ADFEEA (2,471) 12,658
(2,471) 12,658
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) - continued
Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies - continued
Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 1 July 2012 of
the application of the above new and revised standards

JE_E X P ET RASNE AT ERIE R —F —
F+H—HEE  RlEREm I ZEH

As at
1 July 2012 As at
as previously HKAS 19 1 July 2012
reported adjustments as restated
RZZ——F EEBE RZZ——F
+A—H AERZ519%% +H—H
BEZ5 2R 2 &7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAEL THET
Retirement benefit obligations RRERIAE 50,389 60,297 110,686
Total effect on net assets HEEFEZREYE 50,389 60,297 110,686
Translation reserve 0 5,189 1,340 6,529
Retained profits RE2%H 1,639,402 (61,637) 1,577,765
Total effect on equity YRR y T2 1,644,591 (60,297) 1,584,294

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 30 June 2013
of the application of the above new and revised standards

JEM L X T AT RASIEFTERIBI R — F
FNA=1THEE  BERERZFE

As at
30 June 2013 As at
as previously HKAS 19 30 June 2013
reported adjustments as restated
T—= REBEE j =

ERIZ195:

BAEZ5 2R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THT THET
Retirement benefit obligations RINERIRIE 46,133 47,639 93,772
Total effect on net assets HEESEEREYE 46,133 47,639 93,772
Tranglation reserve [ 6,544 2,336 8,880
Retained profits REHEN 1,699,504 (49,975) 1,649,529
Total effect on equity YRRy BEE 1,706,048 (47,639) 1,658,409
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For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 H#EZ—Z—NWFEA=1+HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ?X%W%ﬁﬂ&&ﬂ%ﬂ?%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ZR([EEMEREED])
(“HKFRSS”) - continued

Summary of the effects of the above changes in Xz BT R ERE
accounting policies - continued —&

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 30 June 2014 JEFH | XAl # 5T R ASIE 5T 2ERI# e — FE—p1
of the application of the above new and revised standards FNA=THEE - BER#ERZZE

30 June 2014
R-Z-—mF
AA=TH
HK$°000
FHT
Increase in retirement benefit obligations RREFIASEIE M 50,110
Decrease in net assets BEFERD 50,110
Increase in translation reserve BEE 53 fR A N 2,203
Decrease in retained earings RBFEFHL (52,313)
Decrease in equity AR (50,110)
Impact on basic earnings per share HRERE T2 50
2014
—Z-NE
HK cents
Al
Figures before adjustments AERET 0.08 1.09
Adjustments arising from application of HKAS 19 fER & & & 5821958
(as revised in 2011) (ZE——FRIBDELZRE (0.05) (0.06)
Figures after adjustments AEBET 0.03 1.03
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) - continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle!
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment entities®
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interest in joint operations*
Amendments to HKAS 16 and  Clarification of acceptable methods of
HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation*
Amendments to HKAS 16 and  Agriculture: Bearer plants*
HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions!
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate
financial statements*
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets®
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting®
HK(IFRIC)* — INT 21 Levies®
* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretation Committee.

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of the other new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretation will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #EZ—Z—MNFE A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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EBREEBERAF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #EZ—Z—MNFE A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests
Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units, the

attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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EBREEBERAF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant
softwares are delivered and title has passed.

Service income relating to sales of systems products,
software licensing and customisation is recognised when
services are rendered.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
assets under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings on freehold land 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years

Plant and machinery and 10% — 50%

communications networks
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #EZ—Z—MNFE A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment (other than goodwill, development
costs for systems and networks and financial
assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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EBREEBERAF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Impairment (other than goodwill, development
costs for systems and networks and financial
assets) - continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable
amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Deposits and prepaid development costs and
development costs for systems and networks
Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects
under construction by the system developers. Deposits and
prepaid development costs are transferred to development
costs for systems and networks when it is implemented for
its intended use, and are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERE

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #EZ—Z—MNFE A=+ HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Deposits and prepaid development costs and
development costs for systems and networks

— continued

Development costs are recognised only if all of the following
have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the asset or the asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the asset;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfill the above conditions
are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred.

Development costs for systems and networks, which
are implemented for its intended use, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation is
calculated based on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, subject to a maximum of five years.

Where the recoverable amount of deposits and prepaid
development costs and development costs for systems
and networks has declined below their carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the decline in
value. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

An item of deposits and prepaid development costs
and development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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EBREEBERAF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #EZ—Z—MNFE A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments - continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
assets original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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EBREEBERAF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognised financial assets only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 #EZ—Z—MNFE A=+ HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Provision
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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EBREEBERAF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the
cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried
out every three years and updated annually at the end of
the reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past
service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost and past
service cost);

o net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item general and
administrative expenses.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reduction in future
contributions to the plans.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Development costs for systems and networks and

deposits and prepaid development costs

(1) Estimated useful life
The estimated useful life of the assets reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the development. Where the actual useful life
is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.
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EBREEBERAF

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs — continued

@)

Estimated impairment

Determining whether development costs for
systems and networks, and deposits and prepaid
development costs are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount which is the
higher of the fair value less cost of disposal and value
in use on a project-by-project basis. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flow expected to arise from the continuing use
of the assets or since successful launch of technology
projects and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The Group estimates its
cash flow projection covering a period of up to five-
year period based on financial budgets approved by
management and a discount rate of ranging from
10% to 25% (2013: 10% to 20%) per annum.

The directors also consider the revenue and operating
costs of the technology projects in the coming years
will be in line with the Group’s budgets, taking into
account of current economical factors. In the event
that the technology projects are not expected to be
well received by the market, these development costs
for systems and networks and deposits and prepaid
development costs may not be fully recovered and
impairment loss may arise. In the event that the
developers fail to perform their obligations to develop
the technologies as required, the Group will estimate
the future cash flows from recovering the deposits
and prepaid development costs from developers.
As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amounts of
development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs were
HK$1,062,346,000 (2013: HK$1,547,368,000) and
nil (2013: HK$413,904,000) respectively. Impairment
loss has been recognised with details set out in notes
14 and 16.

As at 30 June 2013, the aged analysis of the
deposits and prepaid development costs comprised
of balance less than one year of HK$200,460,000
(2014: nil), balance between one to two years of
HK$173,940,000 (2014: nil) and balance over two
years of HK$39,504,000 (2014: nil).

As at 30 June 2013, the deposits paid to the largest
developer and the deposits paid for the largest
project under development accounted for 52% (2014
nil) and 48% (2014: nil) of the total deposits and
prepaid development costs respectively.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued
Development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs - continued

©)

In-Car Telematics Solution project

Included in the Group’s development costs for
systems and networks is an investment in the In-
Car Telematics Solution project with a carrying value
of HK$683,838,000 (2013: HK$872,638,000). The
project aims to install in-car telematics solutions
to prevent drunk driving. The management initially
expected the project to be gradually launched into the
market starting from the current year. However, this
has not happened. It is the management’s opinion
that a slowdown in business growth in general for
the auto industry and a longer than expected time for
market participants such as car manufacturers, and
governments to embrace such telematics has caused
the delay in launch of the product into the market.
Also, in previous years, the Group entered into license
agreements with certain of its agents to promote and
further enhance the marketability of these products
in various jurisdictions. The license terms of these
agreements will all end on 30 November 2014.

Due to the delay in launching of this project,
the Group has during the year revised certain
assumptions used for developing its budget and
estimated cash flows for the In-Car Telematics
Solution project. The major assumptions are that the
Group will be able to renew these license agreements
with its agents before 30 November 2014 and that
the products will be launched to market thereafter.
The estimated cash flows forecasts from the project
have been revised covering for a period of 3 to 4
years (2013: 4 to 5 years) and discount rate of 25%
(2013: 20%).

As a result of revision of the above assumptions,
the Group has recognised a further impairment
loss in the In-Car Telematics Solution project of
HK$142,000,000 (2013: nil). The Group will keep the
economic situation and the business of the Group
under continuing review. Management is continuing
its effort with relevant governments for adoption
of these products and to renew these license
agreements with agents. Management is cautiously
optimistic of the adoption of these telematics by
relevant governments and the outcome of the renewal
of license agreements. In the event that the adoption
is not progressing well or that the agreements are not
renewed, further impairment loss may arise.
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EBREEBERAF

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Recoverability of advance to suppliers

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has advance to suppliers
of HK$1,495,057,000 (2013: HK$790,547,000). The
advance was purchase deposits paid to suppliers of system
products and cultural products.

As at 30 June 2014, the advance paid to the largest
supplier accounted for 43% (2013: 38%) of the total
advance to suppliers.

The directors of the Company consider the advance paid
to suppliers can be recovered from customers on the
assumption of realisation of subsequent sales of related
products. In the event that the relevant products are not
as well received by the market as anticipated and no
subsequent sales are realised, the suppliers may not be
able to refund in full and impairment loss may arise.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2014, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$484,222,000
(2013: HK$460,680,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30
June 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 15.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

TRITH
SBMIAER

2014 ZAK]
—B-MmF ==

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT Fig

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B IR R
(including deposits, bank balances and cash) (R¥EER - RITEBNESD) 2,089,653 1,368,330
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost b E DN 71,107 66,394

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only allow
customers with good credit history to pay on credit. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account of future discounted cash
flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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EBREEBERAF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Credit risk — continued

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on
a few distributors. Receivables from top five distributors
represented approximately 93% (2013: 94%) of trade
receivables in system sales and licensing at the end of the
reporting period. Also, advances to suppliers included in
other receivables are all concentrated on a few suppliers.
The management considers that there are no significant
credit risks on the distributors and suppliers due to the long
and good credit history of these counter parties.

Liquidlity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and the compliance of loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

5. $®THR -»#

MEEREEEERBE &

mBE T/ — A

Carrying
Effective  On demand Total  amount at
interest  or less than 7-12 1-2 2-5 undiscounted 30 June

rates 6 months months years years  cash flows

RER REH

68  7ZE128A 1225 2Z5F g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER  TER  TER TR TER TR

2014 —E-|mE

Trade and other payables ENESREMED - 39,476 - - - 39,476 39,476
Bank borrowings BIEE 3.0 15,240 2,716 4,951 10,150 33,057 31,631
54,716 2,716 4,951 10,150 72,533 71,107
Carmying
Effective  On demand Total amount at
interest ~ orless than 7-12 1-2 25 unaiscounted 30 June

6 months months years years  cash flows

REA KRR
TE12{8R 1226 2B5F LIREfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TAL THL T THL TAL FHT

2013 —E-=f

Trade and other payables ENESREMEDR - 41,686 - - - 41,686 41,686
Bank borrowings BOEE 30 5412 2,39 4507 14,354 26,668 24708
47,098 2,39 4,507 14,354 68,354 66,394

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings. The Group does not enter into any
arrangement to hedge cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arises.

The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated

on the fluctuation of sterling base rates arising from the
Group’s Pound Sterlings denominated borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate deposits,
bank balances and bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming that
the amount of balances outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 10
basis points (2013: 10 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2013: 10 basis
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June
2014 would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$36,000 (2013: increase or decrease by HK$58,000).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain trade
receivables and deposits and bank balances of the Group
and intra-group current accounts are denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging instruments. It is the Group’s
policy to manage foreign exchange risk through matching
foreign currency income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued
Foreign currency risk — continued
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
(including intra-group current accounts) at the reporting
date are as follows:

eI R -~
R EEEEREE &

S e —AE
SESBRIINEHECEBEERERAR
(BREERKEARBEZHRE O)REREH
HZBREEDT

2014 2013

“E2-mE —T-=F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE =L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TiExT TET FAT FAT
Euro BT 16,509 3,714 6,217 102
Hong Kong dollar BT 6,142 4,000 29,116 73
Pound Sterling g 524 - 941 -
Macau Pataca ol 662 - 358 42
United States dollar ET 1,156 1,098 254 2,562

Sensitivity analysis R E DT

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk in Euro, Pound Sterling and United States dollar. Under
the pegged exchange rate system, the financial exposure
on exchange rate fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar
and United States dollar is considered insignificant by the
directors and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% (2013: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro and
Pound Sterling against each group entity’s functional
currency. 5% (2013: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit before taxation where Euro and Pound
Sterling strengthen 5% (2013: 5%) against each group
entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening
of Euro and Pound Sterling against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

Euro BT
Pound Sterling HeE

SRTITHE &

MERREREEERBE &

S m e —AE
YRREDNT—&

2014
—Z2-QmF

HK$’000
FTER

640
26

2013
—z—=x
HK$'000
b7

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(@) Turnover
Turnover represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided by
the Group to external customers, licensing fees and
leasing income received and receivable during the
year.

The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

ERERR  BREDTIAREERKRE S INE
[ - TR FR BRI RRERER

THEERERMABZATFEE
SRAERSRMAMI ATRERERRRS

MO AREBRAEE -

EEARREBHEE AR
MEERBEZREER

ERBERTEER

(a) &XE

BBREIRZE
DNFHEERE -

EEERFAAKERAINBETHE
EmMREHRE 2 MR ERRIE - B
Wk el 2 Frar i B A R EWA -

REEZ EEBERE ISR

2014 2013

—ZT-NEF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FAT

Sales of cultural products SHEXLEM 1,132,279 475,418
Sales of systems and products HERGRER 783,393 746,965
Licensing fees jeus g 636,750 618,542
Rendering of services TR 141,101 87,663
Leasing of systems products HERFER 26,763 24,806
2,720,286 1,953,394
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

— continued

(b)

Segment information

The operating segments have been identified on
the basis of internal management reports prepared
in accordance with accounting policies conforming
to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. Three operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are
identified as follows:

includes income from
trading of cultural
products

e Sales of cultural products  —

includes income from sales
of systems products,
software licensing and
customisation and
provision of related
services

e Systems sales and -
licensing

includes income from
leasing of systems
products

e [easing of systems —
products

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
results represent the profit (loss) before taxation
earned by each segment, excluding interest income,
finance costs, unallocated income and expenses
such as central administration costs and directors’
salaries. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company, the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERSEER-#

— continued

(b) Segment information - continued (b) 7EER-#
Information regarding the above segments is reported B LMD BEERZHRAT
below:

Systems Leasing of Sales of
sales and systems cultural
licensing products products  Consolidated
RGHE HERGK HEL
RAFEE EfR EfR =e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET FTERT THER
Year ended HE-Z-MF
30 June 2014 ARE=THLEE
TURNOVER ]
External and total revenue ¥4 & R &M 1,561,244 26,763 1,132,279 2,720,286
RESULTS S
Segment result DEEE (47,160) 1,387 51,400 5,627
Interest income FEWA 5,000
Finance costs BIFEAAR (615)
Unallocated expenses, net KO FELFE S — %58 (5,252)
Profit before taxation BREL TR A 4,760
Year ended HE—_T—=F
30June 2013 (asrestated) NA=tTHILFE(EE)
TURNOVER BEE
External and total revenue  $f9MEE R &ULA 1,453,170 24,806 475,418 1,953,394
RESULTS E3
Segment result DEE¥E 52,387 1,260 32,885 86,532
Interest income FEKA 5,021
Finance costs BTSN (1,837)
Unallocated expenses, net KBRSz — %4 (11,579)
Profit before taxation R T8 AT 78,137
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBRIEER -»#

— continued
(b) Segment information - continued (b) 7EER-#

Systems Leasing of Sales of
sales and systems cultural
licensing products products  Consolidated

ZEHE  HERS HEX(L

RAEHE Em Em F)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT TR

Year ended BE-Z-m&g
30 June 2014 NA=THLEE
Amounts included in the measure of BRETED BHEFIK
segment profit or loss: BEseE
Amortisation and depreciation B NITE 553,320 2,553 - 555,873
Impairment losses recognised for R G R AR R R A
development costs for systems FTiER 2 R(E
and networks BB 142,000 - - 142,000
Impairment losses recognised for deposits 1% 4 RIEMBIEAA
and prepaid development costs FriEsR 2 REEE 126,474 - - 126,474
Loss on disposal of property, HEDE  BEEE
plant and equipment ZEE m - - m
Year ended BE-T—=%
30 June 2013 ANAZTHLEEE
Amounts included in the measure of ARstEDEHEF
segment profit or loss: BEze®E:
Amortisation and depreciation HERITE 522,964 2,940 - 525,904
Impairment losses recognised for deposits — FhiR4 R IB BIERUA
and prepaid development costs PR 2 REBE 157,656 - - 157,656
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKE
plant and equipment ZER 48 - _ 48
No assets and liabilities are included in segment HRARARTETREREENBBIELE
reporting as they are not regularly reviewed by the BRZER - MURAEMARDEERER -

executive directors of the Company.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

— continued

(c) Geographical information
The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location
of customers and by location of assets respectively:

Revenue

WA
Year ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEFE

2014
—E-mF
HK$'000
FExT

EEBRSBEER &

(c) HEER
AEBDREREFEREEMEMED 2
WA RIERBNEEDTEHIIR TX ¢

Non-current assets
FRBEE
As at 30 June
RAB=T1H
2014
—Z-NEF
HK$°000
FERT

2013
—T-=F
HK$'000
FHT

2013
—T—=%
HK$’'000
FAT

People’s Republic of China  f#E A R A FIE

(the “PRC"), including (ThE)) - 2iE

Hong Kong and Macau B MR 1,837,662 1,295,357 1,100,885 1,999,847
Europe (mainly United BUOM(EEAHRE

Kingdom and Germany) R1ER) 624,968 491,769 42,810 41,212
Others Hit 257,656 166,268 1,730 1,781

2,720,286 1,953,394 1,145,425 2,042,840
7. OTHER INCOME 7. EHflA

Included in other income is interest income of
HK$5,000,000 (2013: HK$5,021,000).

8. FINANCE COSTS 8.

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable AR
within five years £l

H b g A B 3E F) B UK A 5,000,000/8 L (=&
— =% : 5,021,000/87T) °

FAFE A

2014
—2-IF
HK$’000
TET

HK$'000
b7

615 1,837
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

0

BR B A1 2 A

2014
—Z-QmE
HK$'000

TRz

2013
===t
HK$’000
FAT
(RENEIED)
(B&7l)

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after BRFANRAE

charging: kR
Directors’ remuneration EEHE 3,210 3,377
Staff costs BEMAR 78,858 75,183
Retirement benefit scheme contributions REFIET R

other than directors’ (BEERIN) 10,663 9,804
Total staff costs REMAREE 92,731 88,364
Amortisation on development costs for systems R4 2 484& B BRI AN 2 #E 5

and networks, included in cost of sales (G AHERAR) 543,405 514,495
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, ME  BERREZIE

included in general and administrative expenses  (FF A —f& RATHE HiA) 12,468 11,409
Total amortisation and depreciation BRI ELE 555,873 525,904
Auditor’s remuneration ZERBE 2,658 2,483
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BHERALHZTERA 1,606,088 988,084
Minimum lease payments paid under operating  ZRELHED 2

leases in respect of: REAENFTESE

Rented premises REmE 2,474 2,638

Motor vehicles HE 3,409 3,247
Net foreign exchange loss [E 5 BI85 8 1,016 641
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment EE¥% - iR Kk &E 2 EiE 7m 48
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9.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued

Information regarding directors’, chief executive’s and

employees’ emoluments:

Directors
Year ended 30 June 2014

9. PBRBLADRA -
EWEE  IEORABREAMS 2 AR -

BE=
BE-Z-—NEAA=1THILFE

Retirement

related benefit Total
incentive scheme directors’
payments contributions emoluments

Performance

Salaries

and other

Fees benefits

HERk RIERE RIKER

e HUEN BR2RE  HEER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET T
(Note a)
(FffFa)
Executive directors BTEE
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok e 2 - 57 2,750 - 2,807
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong REXEE - 57 - 1 58
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung BEREAE 5 20 - - 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley st 4 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERYR 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han Ok bea 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling EnRzt 5 15 - - 20
160 299 2,750 1 3,210

Year ended 30 June 2013

BE-T-=F~A=+ALFE

Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
Hok RIERE  RIKEF
we  HtEs Zhese  FEIER ST
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TET TET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hizka)
Executive directors BTEE
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok B EHIR - 57 2,500 - 2,557
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong BEXEE - 57 - 3 60
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung HREREE 5 20 - - 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley L4 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERHE 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han [BEY: ke 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling Bt 5 15 - - 20
Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby Paul Michael James Kirby 2t 4
(resigned with effect from (HBIN-F-=F—A—BE
1 January 2013) (Note b) £30) (o) 25 390 - - 415
185 689 2,500 3 3,377
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued

Directors - continued

Notes:

(a) The performance related incentive payment is discretionary
as recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company having regard to the Group’s financial results
and the performance of the directors.

(b) The director fee of Mr. Paul Michael James Kirby was

for services rendered by him as the director before his
resignation. The salaries and other benefits include the
consultancy fee for his services rendered during the year.

Mr. Lai Yat Kwong is the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
one (2013: one) director of the Company. Details of the
emoluments of that director for the year ended 30 June
2014 are set out above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining four (2013: four) highest paid employees of the
Group, not being directors of the Company, are as follows:

9.

BRBLANER — 2
EE5-Z
P EE -

(@) BRIERRERZ ReBRBIEE - AR
RzHMEE SRR Y2 EAKEUBE
EREETERAMETE

(b) Paul Michael James Kirby7c 4 2 E =44 )
R BT E BRI FTIRMRIS Z 5K - %%
e ME MR @ IEFERIBEF 7D FTiRER
HZBEEE -

RANFTERARANTRMAL - B EHEY
& BEEEITITIRAESR B 2 5 -

=]
AEELEERFALTERRE-—R(ZF
—Z=F —R)ARFEZF - ZREFNHE
“EMERA=ZTHILEFEZESFEERR
EX o REBEHMNE(ZF—=F : O8)&
BFREE (WIEARFES) ZMEEBEIT

2014 2013

—Z-NF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Salaries and other benefits FHe REMET 5,399 5,151
Performance related incentive payments BRIERRER RS 1,178 697
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINEFIFF MR 578 541
7,155 6,389

Emoluments of these employees were within the following

WEREZMEN T TIIEE :

bands:
Number of employee(s)
BEAE

2014

—Z-NF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001787T — 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
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10. TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong. No provision for taxation has been made as
the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from
Hong Kong. Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in, nor
is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not subject

10. BiE

ERNEH AR B BB Z Mt R BUR MR
16.5% (=T —=% : 16.5%) B X E - i
RAKE 2 WABLIER BRI - MIEREE
B BARIEH TR R - bRl AbE 2
BZERRIERE B RAZ BRGE

ERUERERERAEEANBDEMEEF
REBRR - TRIEREEE - MBRGMNES
MSH - kS 2 BN RPIRAG

to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit is either exempt
from Macau income tax or not subject to taxation in any
other jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

B o AR HoA R R AR AR E I FIE -

AEFzHRBEGAREREMEEKRERZ

BRBLADE NSRRI

2014 2013
—Z-MmF —Z-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THRT THT
(Restated)
(BE7)
Profit before taxation FREEAT AR 4,760 78,137
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBNGHE16.5%
of 16.5% (ZZ—=%F:165%)
(2013:16.5%) HEZBE 785 12,893
Tax effect of profit exempted or not subject to REM A EER P HH
taxation in other jurisdictions BEFHER I HBYE (5,771) (39,297)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBS B RER A2
tax purposes BBEE (2972 (2,168)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AARFBENIMRZEZZ
tax purposes HByE 7,324 27,839
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised BT RER L HEEE (426) (619)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KA MBEBZ Gy E 1,060 1,252
Taxation for the year AEE 2B - -
11. DIVIDENDS 11. K2

BABRRBTAREAER
BROABU(ZT—D0F: @)z
“E-—EFENRERE -

2013 final dividend paid in scrip form
equivalent to HKO.1 cent
(2014: nil) per share,

2014
—g-ms

HK$'000
T

with a cash option EERS = 7,516
2014 interim dividend paid in scrip form RARR EARERER
equivalent to HK0.2 cents BRO.2EI(ZE—=F:
(2013: HK0.2 cents) per share, 0.281l)z =T —MFE
with a cash option BARHRE  TRERS 15,133 15,021
15,133 22,537

The final dividend for 2013 was calculated on the basis of
7,516,029,531 shares in issue on 30 June 2013. The Board
has resolved not to recommend final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2014.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SREF
BREABANDBEAFERNRAREE A
B & 52,148,000 T (ZFE—=F(BE&E
H|) : 77,217,000 7T ) R B #1722 INHEF
YR D 82 B 7,540,291,0000 (- T — =4 :
7,507,641,0008%) 514 °

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$2,148,000 (2013 as restated: HK$77,217,000)
and on the weighted average number of shares of
7,540,291,000 shares (2013: 7,507,641,000 shares) in
issue.

B E AL E R ETEE LR - BURE
E-T-EFERNA=THIEMEFEALRZ
SR ESE G AN o

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BRERRE

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the two years
ended 30 June 2014 as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during both years.

Plant and
machinery and
Land and communications

buildings networks Total
S B e
T RIEF RBEAR a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT FAxT

COST RAE
At 1 July 2012 R-E——F+A—H 19,499 332,175 351,674
Currency realignment (R E S 412 (7,305) (7,717)
Additions NE - 10,306 10,306
Disposals = - (487) (487)
At 30 June 2013 R-ZE—=FA=1+H 19,087 334,689 353,776
Currency realignment [ H 2,224 37,947 40,171
Additions INE - 9,797 9,797
Disposals e - (1,866) (1,866)
At 30 June 2014 R-E—mEASA=1+H 21,311 380,567 401,878
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ERBE
At 1 July 2012 R-E——F+AF—H 5,730 299,171 304,901
Currency realignment IE 5 AR (140) (6,740) (6,880)
Provided for the year FREE 418 10,991 11,409
Eliminated on disposals RS - (427) (427)
At 30 June 2013 R-E—=FA=+H 6,008 302,995 309,003
Currency realignment (RIS 415 34,803 35,218
Provided for the year FRBE 276 12,192 12,468
Eliminated on disposals H E B - (1,095) (1,095)
At 30 June 2014 R-ZE—WEARA=1+H 6,699 348,895 355,594
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 30 June 2014 R-ZE—mEASA=1+H 14,612 31,672 46,284
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=FA=1+H 13,079 31,694 44,773
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

13. W% - BERSRE =

2014 2013
—E-IF —E=f

HK$°000 HK$'000

The carrying values of the Group’s property
interests comprise: B

Freehold properties held outside

AEE 2 DEREREE

TET TBT

REBAIMNBE R AR AKE

Hong Kong ek /ES 14,463 12,939

Properties held outside Hong Kong under NEEIMYES A EBRRY
long leases (Note) 23 (EE) 149 140
14,612 13,079

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant
and equipment as the allocations between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

At 30 June 2014, certain land and buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of HK$8,794,000 (2013:
HK$7,871,000) were pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group leased equipment to customers on operating
lease terms. The carrying value of such equipment, which
was included in plant and machinery and communications
networks, was as follows:

MR . AR RETRD TR SRS - HE
AERZEET B AYE - BB KR -

R-ZBE—NENA=1+AH AEBEREES
8,794,000/ 7L( = — =4 : 7,871,000/ 7T)
ZET LM REFDEATIERT  (EAAER
EBEITRME ZER -

AEEZKEHEFAEERBTES - BH
R FRHEEDFARRE BESEFBERE
W REFINT

2014 2013

—Z2-—MmE —T-=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET FAT

At cost TR E 82,800 75,236
Less: Accumulated depreciation W BEHTE (81,812) (74,339)
Carrying value BRE(E 988 897
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14. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS AND  14. Z&RFMBBRERAR

NETWORKS

2014 2013
—B-MmF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiEx TAT
COST A
At beginning of the year F1) 4,588,057 3,702,006
Currency realignment M R (223) 439
Transferred from deposits and BEERe Rk
prepaid development costs BB A 200,460 885,612
At end of the year FiE 4,788,294 4,588,057
AMORTISATION B
At beginning of the year =) 3,040,689 2,526,110
Currency realignment I 5 AR (146) 84
Provided for the year FNEE 543,405 514,495
Impairment losses recognised EHRAERE 142,000 -
At end of the year FiE 3,725,948 3,040,689
CARRYING VALUE BRME(E
At end of the year FiE 1,062,346 1,547,368

Development costs for systems and networks include all
direct costs incurred in setting up and development of
systems and networks. The Group’s development costs for
systems and networks are amortised over the estimated
economic useful lives of a maximum of five years.

During the year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s development costs for systems and networks
in light of the current market condition. The value in use
was determined based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted at a rate ranging from 10% to 25% (2013: 10%
to 20%) per annum. Based on the value in use estimation,
management has determined an impairment loss of
HK$142,000,000 (2013: nil) to be recognised during the
year.
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15.

16.

GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the following cash generating unit (“CGU"):

Provision of e-lottery services
(included in the systems sales and licensing segment)

15.

%Eﬁ
EBAGTRE ZmE N KER DR E T
IR ([FIREN]) ¢

2014 & 2013
—E2-NER

—B-=f
HK$’000
THT

REETFEERE
(FIARSHE R RN )

36,795

For each of the two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013,
management of the Group determines that there was no
impairment of its CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and expected changes to commission rate
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in commission rate and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets and projected for the
next three (2013: three) years based on remaining life of
respective license, taken into account renewed license
period, and discounted at a rate of 20% (2013: 20%)
per annum which reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. Since the recoverable amount of CGU exceeded
the carrying amount, no impairment loss was considered
necessary.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAID DEVELOPMENT
COSTS

During the year, the management conducted a review of
the Group’s deposits and prepaid development costs in
light of the delayed commencement of certain Technology
Projects and determined that these deposits and prepaid
development costs were impaired based on the estimated
recoverable amounts with reference to their values in
use. The values in use were determined based on the
estimated future cash flows discounted at a rate at 20%
(2013: 10% to 20%) per annum. Based on the value in use
estimation, management has determined an impairment
loss of HK$126,474,000 (2013: HK$157,656,000) to be
recognised during the year.
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HE_Z-OFR_T-—=FA=1THL®
BFE  AEEEEERTE  HENEaHE
Z BB ERE -

BB 7 IREEERTAEREEFEEE
E o EAEEEEZEIERBZSRPAZE
BE BEREPYRAER R EERAZ RS
8- EEECBARRERMSMT GRS
PR e B3R BB < 5 TE BB 2 B AT N R S B 3R
RIERGE < BREUITEIERIDBAEE -
MR R ERKA 2 ZEUBEEH RIS
RRTIGHEJEAE -

FN - AREREEREESRORNBAEILIR
BEAERSTRENGFHG RS HRETE
b 2 ARR=ZF(ZT—=F : =F)R
S IEA iﬁﬁT&%;mﬁ%ﬂﬁZﬁé
RHEMEREVFERREF20%(ZF—=
F 1 20%) 2B E - R EET AEUE%S@ ®
m# """"" AR 7 Al SRR RN EARE(E - AN
ERABAEHRERSE -

BERBANBBERAR

FA-EEERESTREEEEERRM
HAEE RS RIBNFEKAETER -

WiE2EHFREERZ G KREEEE -
59&%2%%??&%&%Eﬁ%ﬁ%§ﬁ$m@ o £
BEDIREMETATIBESRIEFER20%(=F
—=F : 10%E20%)AHIRET - RIBFERE
BB - ERERENFANERBEESER
126,474,000/ 70 (= Z — =4 : 157,656,000
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17. INVENTORIES 17. &

2014 2013

—Z-NE —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET T

Raw materials B 13,157 11,957

Work in progress RS 4,533 4,909

Finished goods BURK 189,845 7,657

207,535 24,523

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EWE S K HMER

2014 2013

—Z-MmEF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Trade receivables B E SR 484,222 460,680

Advances to suppliers AR R IE 1,495,057 790,547

Other receivables JEUS EL b BR X 44,749 32,910

2,024,028 1,284,137
The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding AEEREESEFETHBZEEBR - B
its trade customers depending on their credit worthiness, BREZER  REBRE@mIMEE - 1TRRE
nature of services and products, industry practice and EmBEAMGTEFNFI0EE180B 215
condition of the market with credit period ranging from B HA o TE S R R IE e WAL At BRI AR K
30 days to 180 days. The advances to suppliers and - TeH B RARE - WHEFNRE %

other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and FTZEARNER -

refundable, and are expected to be realised in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based EWE ZERFNBERTESRIBZRREIZ
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as BRECHIT 23T -
follows:
2014 2013
—2-QNEF —T-=fF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
T THT
0 - 60 days 0-60H 301,817 293,309
61 —90 days 61-90H 52,633 91,953
91 —180 days 91 -180H 129,772 75,418
484,222 460,680
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18

19.

20.

. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits for the
customers. Limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly with reference to past settlement history. The
Group’s finance and sales management team considers
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality as continuous repayments have
been received.

DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH
The deposits, bank balances and cash comprises short-
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and
cash held by the Group. The deposits and bank balances
carry interest at an average rate of 0.56% (2013: 0.45%)
per annum.

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$20,828,000 (2013:
HK$17,846,000) were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is not freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the Government of the PRC.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 30 June 2014, the balance of trade and other
payables included trade payables of HK$18,778,000 (2013:
HK$12,191,000). The aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

18.

19.

20.

BRESREMRR -~
REMNTEFESH - AEEY HERBES
BEFS I GEEEEEEEEE  URAEE
ErEsE - BIEE 7 EEEe8ZBER
BT HETEN BESBEMERE -
REE Y SR NESEERRARBBHREA
WA ENE SERABR T EEEE -

FRBITERRES

T3 RITEB MRS BERBE A=A K
DAZRHATERRAEEFEZHS - TRK
BITEBIZE T ERR0SBE(ZE—=F :
0.45[2)FT 8. ©

7##£20,828,000/8 7T (= F—=% : 17,846,000
B ZETRITEHRRRASTINARE A
R¥& DFHE - MAREILIEATRBETS A
Rz G - \REERRPEBFTEE @ B
PEEHZSFESAXTRABRNERIINEE
HIFTARER

B E 5 R H AR
RZZT—MENA=Z1+H BNESREAME
R B IE18,778,000/8 TT( —E—=4F :
12,191,000 ) Z B E SRR - BN E S
BRI HR S B e A5 R IR IR B 22 A B 2 BRie D AT
Z5F ¢

2014 VA K]

—E-mE —F—=f

HK$’000 HK$'000

T TR

0 - 60 days 0—-60H 18,493 11,906
61— 90 days 61-908 - 71
91 - 180 days 91 -180H - 4
> 180 days > 180H 285 210
18,778 12,191

The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30
days to 60 days.

Other payables mainly represent receipt in advance and
accruals.
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21. WARRANTY PROVISION 21. RERE
2014 2013
—Z-NE —T-—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FAT
At 1 July »tHA—H 1,246 1,229
Currency realignment [ 79 37
Provided during the year FRRE 1,088 1,083
Utilised during the year FREBHA (1,119) (1,103)
At 30 June WAA=1A 1,294 1,246
The warranty provision represents the management’s best REBBETEBREBALBEENEER
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties MERZESHE  RETFEXDTZEAR
granted on manufactured products, based on prior EMMEANEEE FAREEDL 2 &EFE -
experience and industry average for defective products.
22. BANK BORROWINGS 22. SRITEE
2014 2013
—EB-NE =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Bank borrowings comprise the following: RITEERE
Bank loans RITEN
Secured (Note) B (ATEE) 19,131 21,708
Unsecured g 12,500 3,000
31,631 24,708
Note: The bank loans are secured by the Group’s land and FiaE - SR1TERIAR K E RE{E 738,794,000/ 7T
buildings with carrying value of HK$8,794,000 (2013: (ZF—=% :7,871,00087T) 2 T it R IEF
HK$7,871,000). VEHH -
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22.

23.

BANK BORROWINGS - continued

The above bank loans bear variable interest ranging from
2.2% t0 3.4% (2013: 2.3% to 3.0%) per annum.

22.

BITERE-=
ERBITEREN F22EEAE(ZF—=
F: 23EE308)FBFMNEE

2014
—2-mF

2013
—T—=fF
HK$’'000
FAEL

HK$°000
FER

Carrying amount repayable: BIEERMEE -
On demand or within one year 1A —FE 17,283 7,719
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 4,783 4,247
After two years but within five years MERBREFR 9,565 12,742
31,631 24,708
Less: Amount due within one year included in WO RHEBEETR—ER
current liabilities x| (17,283) (7,719
Amount due after one year —FiREIEEEE 14,348 16,989

As at 30 June 2014, bank loans repayable on demand or
within one year included bank loans of HK$12,500,000
(2013: HK$3,000,000) which contains a repayable on
demand clause in accordance with the terms of the bank
facilities of subsidiaries of the Group. These amounts had
been classified as current liabilities. As at 30 June 2014 and
2013, a corporate guarantee was provided by Champion to
a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a
retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of their
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled
all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory
provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit
cost of the MPF scheme charged to the profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of government-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the respective local government in
the PRC. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.
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E - AEREIEARDARE N-ZT—WF
E—B—=FXA=10 BERKNEEME
RIRITRE MR TIEH A RIELR -

RREAGHE
ERAREE
AR TE T HB A F 555518 8RR
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continved
Defined contribution scheme - continued
During the year, retirement benefit scheme contributions
paid for the above scheme amounted to HK$2,310,000
(2013: HK$1,864,000).

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits with reference to the
final salary of the members at retirement and their length of
service. The scheme is closed to new members.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified
actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the
projected unit credit method are charged to the profit or
loss. Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to
a pension between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for
each year of pensionable service at an age of 65. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided. The most recent
actuarial valuations of scheme assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at
30 June 2014 by Mr. Adam Stanley, Fellow of the Institute
of Actuaries, for the accounting reporting purpose. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on
the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of
return on investments and the rates of increase in salaries,
pensions and share dividends.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

23.

BRERETE
ERMUNREE -

P9+ B DI BIE X ZRERIE BN
732,310,000/ 7T ( =& — =4 : 1,864,000/8
) -

EREANE

AREE T ETHELARIATERRE
RSB o Ll BIRE B RNRIKE 2 &
KBS REREFRRHEEBRASET - &
SHRITERHIKE LM -

BIEAERIBEME = FRET BB AR
BEETZHRPNEEING o RIEZTE - BB
— B ERE5HRE - EFIREAERKE 2
IRIGEBN T HILHE1.67%E2.50% 2 BIK
& o AEEIWAERMEAMRIKERF - RO 2
EEEREMEREERANAERENR -
—FENA=+HBEBEESE)XELAdam
StanleyZt £#1T + AEETSFTHRABREE ° ¥
HELRFAEATE Y BLAEBRE DR
RNFE - RARSER S ZFHE -

PAAEZBERRNT

At 30 June 2014 At 30 June 2013

Discount rate BEIR &
Expected rate of salary increase EHE S R
Future pension increases RAGRINE FHE

R-Z-—IF RZT—=F
~A=1H ~NA=1H
4.30% 4.60%
3.50% 3.40%
3.30% 3.20%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2014 by Mr.
Adam Stanley showed that the market value of the scheme
assets was HK$358,299,000 (2013: HK$289,929,000) and
that the actuarial value of these assets represented 78%
(2013: 76%) of the benefits that had accrued to members.
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued
Defined benefit scheme — continued
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the
defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

23.

BRNEAGE- =
ERERE -2
REMENRASHBNGR BB R A MEE
W R R ST -

2014 2013
—Z2-—MmE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTiEx FAEL
(RENEIED)
(BEF)
Current service cost BATIRB AR (2,421) (2,013)
Scheme administrative costs SHBIFTEAR A (1,593) (1,203)
Net interest expense FEZHFEE (4,340) (4,727
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in - A EREHER 2 2@ T
profit or loss (included in general and A (A
administrative expenses) MBS ) (8,354) (7,943)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:  Est & FEEEF & EFE
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts FEEEZER(TBIEEHA
included in net interest expense) FEXHFHEZEH) 18,627 6,322
Actuarial gains arising from changes in ABBRBREBEE S
demographic assumptions BE 6,021 5672
Actuarial (losses) gains arising from changes B BERESMELAZBE
in financial assumptions (B18) %k (23,569) 4,419
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in -~ R E {2 FE SR 2 E 8
other comprehensive income BRI AR D 1,079 16,413
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2E(H)KESBE (7,275) 8,470

The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in
respect of its defined benefit pension plans is as follows:

AAREE EERMNERRSEAENELZ
SHEOFABREHBARRE - ST

2014 2013
—Z2-—NmEF —zF—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FAEL
(Restated)
(BEF)
Fair value of scheme assets SHEIEEZATEE 358,299 289,929
Present value of funded obligations EeFiEs RE (457,526) (383,701)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation — FEErEFIAMEREL 2 BEFE (99,227) (93,772)
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continved  23.
Defined benefit scheme - continued
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation are as follows:

BB =
ERBANGE -2
EEEREEZR

FEIT ¢

2014 2013
—Z2-MmE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FAT
Opening defined benefit obligation EH)E RN A E 383,701 395,585
Currency realignment b i R 49,780 (9,417
Current service cost BITIRIEAAR 2,421 2,013
Interest cost FERAK 18,489 17,064
Remeasurement (gains) losses: EETE (W) EiE -
Actuarial gains and losses arising from AOBRBREESRELZ
changes in demographic assumptions BE W REE (6,021) (5,672)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from FBBRERESMEL Y
changes in financial assumptions B R ER 23,569 (4,419)
Contributions = 1,668 1,670
Benefits paid PR (16,081) (13,123
Closing defined benefit obligation FRTERNEE 457,526 383,701

Movements in the fair value of scheme assets are as
follows:

HEAE ATEEZHOT -

2014
—Z-—MmEF =

HK$°000 HK$’000
FTiEx TAT
Opening fair value of plan assets FYEEEEZ AT EE 289,929 284,899
Currency realignment (R 38,316 (7,332)
Interest income FBUWA 14,149 12,337
Scheme administrative costs FHEITTERAAR (1,593) (1,203)

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts FFEBEZER(TBIERAF
included in net interest expense) FEZHze%) 18,627 6,322
Contributions = 14,952 8,029
Benefits paid FrftER (16,081) (13,123)
Closing fair value of plan assets FESEEEZATEE 358,299 289,929
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23.

24.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued
Defined benefit scheme - continued

The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rate
of return at the end of the reporting period is analysed as
follows:

23.

RKERETE =
EREAE -2

SHBIE AN RS RS2 AT EERESE
BEAMMT

Fair value of plan assets

STEEEZATER
2014 2013
=k =5==5
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Equity instruments HEITA 317,647 255,773
Debt instruments BEIA 36,972 31,407
Other assets Hih&E 3,680 2,749
358,299 289,929

The overall expected rate of return of assets held is 6.4%
(2013: 6.1%). The overall expected rate of return is a
weighted average of the expected returns of the various
categories of scheme assets held. The assumptions used in
determining the overall expected return of the scheme have
been set with reference to yields available on government
bonds and appropriate risk margins.

The actual return on scheme assets was HK$31,183,000
(2013: HK$17,456,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$58,406,000 (2013:
HK$54,556,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
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B2 5t BB ETRHE R INEF I8 - AN
ERt 8z BRRHm R 2 RET2RBFES
W R FEE R RERE

FEIEEZ BREIHRA31,183,0008 T (=%
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A
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each:

Balance at 1 July 2012,

25. BAE

BREE0EIL AR :

RZE——F+tA—H"

Number of shares
RAEE

’000
MR

Amount
-]
HK$°000
TERT

30 June 2013 and ZE-=FX A=tAK
30 June 2014 “E-MEXA=THZES 12,000,000 1,200,000
Issued and fully paid share capital of BREEIETZEETR

HK$0.1 each: HRRA
Balance at 1 July 2012 RZZ——FtA—HzE&EH 7,504,576 750,458
Issue of shares as 2012 final RREBITROIEA=S—=F

scrip dividend KEARR & 5,978 598
Issue of shares as 2013 interim R EETROIEA=ZS—=F

scrip dividend FRHREE 5,475 547
Balance at 30 June 2013 and RZZ—=F A=+tAK

1July 2013 ZE-=FtLA-HZEH 7,516,029 751,603
Issue of shares as 2013 final R EETROIER-S—=F

scrip dividend REARR B 50,347 5,035
Issue of shares as 2014 interim IR EETROER=S—NF

scrip dividend FHIRRE 22,374 2,237
Balance at 30 June 2014 R-B-MEXA=TEz&E 7,588,750 758,875

During the year, the following changes in the share capital FR - ARRZBAZEEHR T

of the Company took place:

(@  InJanuary 2014, 50,346,537 shares of HK$0.1 each @ RZE—NF—A - REEZZRAHA
were issued at a price of HK$0.1 per share upon —Z—ME— =82 BEKAERZIA
election by shareholders to receive shares in the BRBEE - UARRBRORER U
Company in lieu of the 2013 final dividend in cash, NM-_ZT—=FRERKREER - XARRE
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in 1R0.178 7T 2 (B8 81750,346,537 R B A%
a circular dated 3 January 2014; and HE0. 1B T2’ &

(b) In May 2014, 22,374,208 shares of HK$0.1 each b)) R-Z-—MERA REBEZRAHA

were issued at a price of HK$0.1 per share upon
election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2014 interim dividend in cash,
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in
a circular dated 11 April 2014.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in issue in all respects.
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26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Each of the Company, Champion, and a fellow subsidiary
during the year ended 30 June 2014 which Champion has
subsequently disposed of its entire controlling interest,
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), has a share
option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Champion, Digital HK or any of
their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to
subscribe for shares of the Company, Champion and Digital
HK respectively.

(i)

The Company

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose
of the Scheme was to attract and to retain quality
personnel and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. Under the Scheme, the directors of the
Company may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business and
operation of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates
or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of the Group, to subscribe
for shares of the Company. An option granted is
exercisable at any time for a period determined by
the directors of the Company which should not be
more than ten years from the date of grant, where
the acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which the options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options must
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option under the scheme has been granted since its
adoption.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(ii) Champion

On 30 November 2012, Champion adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Champion Option Scheme
was to attract and to retain quality personnel and
other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of
Champion and its subsidiaries (the “Champion
Group”). Under the Champion Option Scheme,
the directors of Champion might grant options to
any directors, employees, consultants, advisors in
respect of business and operation of Champion, its
subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects included the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
aforesaid persons as well as customers and suppliers
of the Champion Group, to subscribe for shares of
Champion. An option granted by Champion was
exercisable at any time for a period determined by
the directors of Champion which should not be more
than ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Champion Option Scheme equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. No share option has
been granted by Champion under the Champion
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(i) Digital HK
On 30 November 2012, Digital HK adopted a share
option scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the DHK Option Scheme was to attract
and to retain quality personnel and other persons
and to provide them with incentive to contribute
to the business and operation of Digital HK and
its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”). Under the
DHK Option Scheme, the directors of Digital HK
might grant options to any directors, employees,
consultants, advisors in respect of business and
operation of Digital HK, its subsidiaries or affiliates or
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
included the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as any person or entity as may be determined by the
directors of Digital HK from time to time of the Digital
HK Group, to subscribe for shares of Digital HK. An
option granted by Digital HK was exercisable at any
time for a period no more than ten years from the
date of grant, where the acceptance date should not
be later than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
DHK Option Scheme was equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. No option has been
granted by Digital HK under the DHK Option Scheme
since its adoption.

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant
and equipment and development costs

28.

BARESE

2014
—Z-QmE

2013
=4
HK$'000
FHT

HK$'000
TET

EREERITKZBENE -
MR ERERIARAE

for systems and networks authorised but not ARz BARFEX
contracted for 21,684 51,636
29. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29. REHELH
The Group as lessee AEBEEREABEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises and motor
vehicles which fall due as follows:

2014
—2-mF

Land and

buildings
TiREF
HK$’000
FTHET

Operating leases which RTE|FEHERZ

NEHTER - AEEZIRARERYREE
MEZA A HHEEHE BREERNES
REDHBBEROT

2013
===
Land and Motor
buildings vehicles
TH RIEF pa
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
; FAT

Motor
vehicles
HE
HK$’000
T

expire: REHE -
Within one year —FR 934 2,850 1,036 2,385
In the second to fourth year F_EEFNF
inclusive ] 4,167 3,151 5,125 4,035
5,101 6,001 6,161 6,420

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years and
rentals are fixed for terms of one to four years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted
with lessees in respect of leasing of plant and machinery
and communications networks which fall due as follows:

KEMRIEEFON T —FENF > Ml
TYR—FENF 2 FHEE -

AEBEAEBEA

Rk BB - AR E A TR R
N RBEBHERAST AL - HEBER
T -

2014
—2-mF

HK$’000

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years

—FR
E_FEFRFN
REFNE

FER

1,620
9,822
4,296 -

15,738
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30. BEALRS
R AEBRETERETTIIRG -

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions
with Champion:

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$’'000

FAEL

HK$°000
FER

Nature of transactions REMUE

Fees paid by the Group to Champion for the AREBIRA AN RS E (TR

provision of office premises and facilities, WREMERBEAR

and management services, on cost basis EBRECER 900 900
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for REE A E S NI ARE

treasury services 2B 738 682

These transactions were carried out after negotiation
between the Group and Champion. The fees paid for the
provision of office premises and facilities, and management
services were in accordance with the management
agreement entered into with Champion dated 20 December
1996, which was renewed on 5 January 2010.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, a corporate guarantee was
provided by Champion to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to the Group.

The key management personnel of the Group are the
executive directors of the Company and the five highest
paid individuals. The aggregate amount paid to them was
HK$10,020,000 (2013: HK$9,006,000) details of which are
set out in note 9.
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. ZEMBEAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June NR-E—NENA=1THEER-_ZE—=F,X8
2014 and 30 June 2013 are as follows: =+H  ARASEEWBARZFEAT :
Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
Place of incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FMAYL/ ERTRAEE FAREEERT
WEARER T THER RAEELH TEER
2014 2014
—Z-mE 5 “E-NE
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 71.2% 77.2%  Investment holding
KBERRES 1S52,636,320 15$2,636,320 REZK
EER LBk
2,636,320% 7 2,636,320 T
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US§1 100% 100%  Investment holding
B L EBERIET TERIET RERR
China Sports Network Limted ~~ Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Development of gaming software,
REERERAR BELES 1S$1,000,000 5$1,000,000 sports contents, sports websites
EER Lk and sports network systems
1,000,000% 7T 1,000,000 7T BN BEER  BEE
HREEREZREEER
Good Holdings Limited* Republic of Seychelles Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERALTE US$50,000 1S$50,000 REER
EER EER
50,000% 7T 50,000% 7T
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
HE £5,500,000 £5,500,000 RERR
BEER LAk
5,500,002 5 5,500,000 £
Keen Pacific Limited* Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US1 100% 100%  Provision of treastry services
BEGES EBRIZT ETERET RETRE
Kontone Development Limited*  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
BRERERAA BB EERGET LT REH RS
M.C. Holdings Limited”* Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
HERE £5,500,002 £5,500,002 AR
EBER Lk
5,500,002% 55 5,500,002 £
Multitone Electronica Limitada ~ Brazil Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Distribution of communication
BR R$300,000 R$300,000 systems and equipment
EER LER PIEBERRREE
300,008 =5 300,000E /4
Multitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding, design and
HE £3,830,107 £3,830,107 manufacture of communication
EBER Lk systems and equipment
3,830,075 8% 3,830,107 REER XA REERE
ZHRE
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd. ~ Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Manufacturing of communication
i MR285,000 MR285,000 systems and equipment
EER Liak EEREENRER
265000FREET 2850005 KEETT
Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Distribution of communication
126 €1,022,584 €1,002,584 systems and equipment
EER LER DERERRREE

1,022 5848 7T 1,022, 584B0 T
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of incorporation/
operations
FMAYL/

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER bk

FEMB AT &

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company
AAREEERT
BRAEELLA

Principal activities

FRER

Peak Vantage Limited"

Pearl Delta Inc*

Shenzhen Hengyu Science and
Technology Company Limited

EERR(RIERAF

Silverstrand Investments Limited™

Smart Delta Inc*

Smart (Macao Commercial
(ffshore) Limited

ERCRMBEEERS)
BRAR

Success (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited

RINCRFIEER A 2 IR%)
BRAR

Wollaston Limited*

Zonal Care Incorporated™

Shenzhen Helper Science
Development Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Helper')

AMERRRAEERAR
(TRYIER])

British Virgin Islands/
Macau

RBgEREE/
AP

Samoa/Macau
BEGES,/ AN

PRC
EF

Samoa
BEGES

Samoa
BELEHS

Macau

Pl

Mecau
P

Samoa/Macau
BEGES,/ B

British Virgin Islands/
Macau

KBETRES/
AP

PRC
B

Directly held by the Company.

31.
Nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
ERTRAEE/
aHER
2014
i S1E:3

Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1
EBRIZET LREFEIET
Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1
EBRIZT LTREFEIET
Registered capital Registered capital
RMB24,000,000 RMB24,000,000
EER AhEx
AR#24,000,0008  AK%24,000,000E]
Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1
EBRIZT EERET
Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1
EBRIZR ERRIET
Ordinary Ordinary
MOP100,000 MOP100,000
BEER Lk
MFIM1000008  %FI%100,000H
Ordinary Ordinary
MOP100,000 MOP100,000
EER Lk
HAFI%10000081  2P9%100,000E
Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1
EBRIZT EERET
Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2
EBRER LlRoET
Ordinary Ordinary
RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000
EER LER
AER¥50,0000008  AK%50,000,000E

Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years
commencing 17 October 2003.

AML indirectly holds 61.54% (2013: 61.54%) equity interest
in this company, hence it is accounted for as a subsidiary of

the Group.
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2014
—g-ms

100%

100%

71.2%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

47.5%*

100%

71.2%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

47.5%:

BT =14 -

Provision of treasury services
LA BURT

Provision of treasury services
AL BRT

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RERR

Provision of treasury services
B HR

Provision of services, software
licensing and trading in
communication systems and
equipment

RERS - RHRTER
EETEEES G

Provision of consulting services,
research and development, and
trading of cultural products

REERRE  HRRAZN
REEXER

Investment holding
RERR

Strategic investments in advanced
technology and e-commerce
projects, and provision of
freasury services

REMERETHZEE 2R
BIRE - REBHMBRS

E-lottery business

HARNBEERE
2B  FHA-TT=FT+A++t

AMLBERBZ A F61.54% (=T —=F :

61.54%) 2 At s - MEARBA/RER 2
MEARE -
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 31.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 or at any time during
the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summaried as follows:

TEMBE AT -2~
FRFBIRATMBA T EER AU AEE
LEEEAYERENAEMEEFEEAL
EYHBAT - BEERA - MSEMHBAT
ZEBE—HFIL - BIESERBRTE -

EHWBAAR -T-—NFEAA=TAR-Z
— =45 A=+ B4 AR RIS & AR
53

RIRERTEAEER - ARRES EMMEAREER
SUNEBRZMBRA - ZEMBLARZER
BT

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
TEEHR TEEKE MEAR#E
2014
—E-ImF
Investment holding Macau
REER R 1 1
Inactive Hong Kong/Macau/United Kingdom
TR e W 10 10
11 11
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests
The table below provides details of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling
interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights
Place of incorporation and held by non-controlling interests

31.

TEMBE AT -~
BEERFEEZERRRER Z2HEZEM
NG A=

TR IBLEA B AIERR IS AEEIE
2EHBAFZ S -

Profit (loss) allocated to
non-controlling interests

Accumulated non-controlling

Name of subsidiary principal place of business as at 30 June for the year ended 30 June interests as at 30 June
RAB=tH
FERRREREN HEAA=THILEE
ERTAE:E ) ERERERR PEFFERRER RAR=TH
TEEBILE BRRELH &2 nr (&8) 2R FERBRER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
—®-mF -T-=F —%-MF -3-=F —¥-BF -T=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THERT TET
Shenzhen Helper PRC 38.46% 38.46% 2,294 1,210 19,227 17,154
wYmEm FEl
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 318 (290) 4,969 4,607
BRI R ER 2 R
FERMEAH
2,612 920 24,196 21,761

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before elimination of intragroup

BEEAFERBRESEZ AREMNBEARZ
BB EREZETIINT - THMBERE 2
WERREAERZH 2 S8

transactions.

Shenzhen Helper

FYEH

2014
—2-mF

HK$°000
TR

HK$'000
TET

Non-current assets FRBEE 8,184 10,821

Current assets MEEE 69,071 63,447
Current liabilities REALE (27,264) (29,666)
Equity ey 49,991 44,602
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e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2014 H#EZ—Z—NWFEA=1+HIFE

31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests — continued
Shenzhen Helper — continued

31.

TEMBE AT -2~
BEERFERBRRER ZFZEKH
BARZ#E-—#

SRY 1A — 48

2014
—E-NF
HK$’000
FHT
Revenue g A 108,252 51,503
Other income and expenses HUg A EFY (102,863) (46,860)
Profit for the year REZHRF 5,964 3,146
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEEMEE
for the year (SzH)Uks (575) 1,497
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEB 7B RATFE 5,435 9,495
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEAFEE RS REFE (1,238) (512)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REEFHRE R R (6,829) (606)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash BeRBELEEZRD)
equivalents #NFEE (2,632) 8,377
32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 32. KPRz HBEER
COMPANY

2014
—T-NEF

HK$'000
TET

Interests in subsidiaries PHB AR 2 1,769,260 1,765,019
Other receivables FEUS E i AR R 453 450
Bank balances and cash RITERKERS 9,110 35,329
Total assets BELE 1,778,823 1,800,798
Other payables FERTE M ARFR 1,882 1,754
Dividend payables R RS 3 2
Amount due to a subsidiary ENHB ATz E 136 136
Total liabilities BEBE 2,021 1,892
Net assets BEFE 1,776,802 1,798,906
Capital and reserves B R e

Share capital A 758,875 751,603

Reserves (Note) D) 1,017,927 1,047,303
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KRR NEEER 1,776,802 1,798,906
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32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 32. KRR ZMBEER =
COMPANY - continued
Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current Mzt : RARRAEE RBRFEZHBEHIT ¢

and prior years are as follows:

Share Special DAL ENT Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total

R (E RlfEE REfEE RE R At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THRT THTL BT THET

At 1 July 2012 RWZZ-—FtA—H 799,577 195,874 15,009 35,865 1,046,315

Profit and total comprehensive &5 FI R

income for the year 2EMELE - - - 31,018 31,018
Dividends for the year AEERE

— interim — - - 15,021 (15,021) -

—final —%# - - 7,516 7,516) -
Dividends paid BRERE - - (28,885) - (28,885)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend [ AR B 81 TRR D - - (1,145) - (1,145)

. = (7,493) (22,537) (30,030)

At 30 June 2013 RZZ—=F1 A=1H 799,577 195,874 7,516 44,336 1,047,303

Loss and total comprehensive A& EEE R

expense for the year PEY 5 - - - 6,727) 6,727)
Dividends for the year REFRE

— interim — - - 15,133 (15,133) -
Dividends paid BRRE - - (15,377) - (15,377)
Issue of shares as scrip dividend B LARR(E B 81T A% - - (7,272) - (7,272)

- - (7,516) (15,133) (22,649)

At 30 June 2014 R-Z-mFERA=+H 799,577 195,874 - 22,476 1,017,927
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MBHREE

RESULTS ¥iE
Year ended 30 June
BERA=THLEE
2014 2013 2012
“B-QmE —T-ZF “F--F “33)\&
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$’OOO HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TEx TAT TAT BT BT T T B BT
(Restated)
(BE3)
TURNQVER LR 2720286 1953394 1429281 1341006 1289616 1299684 1613048 1426505 1346894 1,127,326
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY BHAARER
ACTIVITIES BEFORE &l
TAXATION
Continuing operations REMEETH
excluding other LREILERE
operating expenses 273234 235793 184186 149907 166030 266368 473710 466036 389774 276349
(Other operafing expenses GRS (268474)  (157,656)  (104174)  (65720)  (85,800)  (196999) (334904  (95781)  (56,104) (7.997)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION HanEFl 4,760 78,137 80,01 84,187 80,230 69369 138806 410255 331670 268352
TAXATION TE - - 167 133 (121) (1,062 (1842) 0] (115) (424)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEERF 4760 78,137 80,179 84,320 80,109 68307 136964 410254 331555 267928
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: }E{E :
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY VYNGiZ 7N 2,148 a7 80,474 84,025 82,955 71068 143010 412018 332700 267928
NON-CONTROLLING FAREE
INTERESTS X 2,612 920 (295) 2% (2,846) (2.761) (6,046) (1,764) (1,145) -
4,760 78,137 80,179 84,320 80,109 68307 136964 410254 331555 267928
DVDENDS BE 15,133 22531 30,006 25,593 20,825 18,791 51723 120023 93,043 49,75
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EBREEBERAF

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BENRER

At 30 June
WAB=TH
2014 2013 212 2011 2009 2007 2006
“B-ME -F-=F —F--F —FT-—F “IINF ZTE\FE ZEEtF ZEIT5E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000  HK$'000
Téx  TEr  TEr  ThR Thr  TET  TEr  ThRn
(Restated)  (Restated)
(B3 (BE)
TOTAL ASSETS BELF 3443636 3435694 3377650 3334519 3057917 2995040 2545463 2405006 1923147 12393256
TOTAL LIABILITIES BT 223803 196828 207258 173844 181652 199517 256808 265643 238316 310423
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS BEEs 3219743 3238866 3170392 3160675 2876265 2795523 2288605 2139413 1684831 1082833
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO RAFEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY [ElhER 3195547 3217106 3149338 3156748 2872938 2789377 2279155 2124524 1668550 1,082,740
NON-CONTROLLING FEERIRE
INTERESTS 3y 24,19 21,761 21,004 3927 337 6,146 9,500 14,889 16,281 93
3219743 3238866 3170392 3160675 2876265 2795523 2288655 2139413 1684831 1082833
The financial information for the two years ended 30 June 2013 #HE—"ZT—=XA=+HAR_-_ZE——F,xA=+H

and 30 June 2012 has been restated to reflect the effect of
adoption of amendments to HKAS 19 titled “Employee Benefits (as
revised in 2011)” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The results, assets and liabilities for the seven
years ended 30 June 2005 to 30 June 2011 were extracted from
the respective annual reports and not restated to reflect the effect
of adoption of amendments to HKAS 19.
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KANTONE'S GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

BB RBAS

OPERATIONS CENTRES

ASIA-PACIFIC

17°, Andar K

Nos.244-246, Rua De Pequim
Macau

EUROPE

Multitone House
Kempshott, Basingstoke
Hampshire

UK

MAJOR REGIONAL OFFICES
ASIA-PACIFIC

China

St. John’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

Kantone Centre
Chai Wan
Hong Kong

Tian’an Cyber Park
Futian District
Shenzhen

Golden Gate Plaza
Pudong New Area
Shanghai

Ya Yun Cun
Chao Yang District
Beijing

Malaysia
Batu Berendam Free Trade Zone
Malacca

EUROPE

Germany
RoBstraBe 11
Dusseldorf

UK

Hansa Road
King’s Lynn
Norfolk

THE AMERICAS

Brazil
Av. Fagundes Filho
Sé&o Paulo SP

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

ASIA-PACIFIC
Malacca
Malaysia

EUROPE
King’s Lynn
Norfolk

UK

OTHER REGIONAL OFFICES
ASIA-PACIFIC

China
Chengdu
Guangzhou

EUROPE

Austria
Wien

Germany
Berlin
Frankfurt
Hagen
Hannover
Leipzig
Munchen
Stuttgart

Hungary
Budapest

Scotland
Lothian

THE AMERICAS

Brazil
Rio de Janeiro

USA
Washington
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